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Independent Auditors’ Report

To the Members of MEKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

Report on the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Standalone Financial Statements of MKJ Developers
Limited (“the Company”) which comprise the Balance Sheet as at March 31 2021, the
Statement of Profit and Loss including Other Comprehensive Income, the Statement of
Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year then ended, and a summary of
significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to
us, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements give the information required by the
Companies Act, 2013, as amended (“the Act”) in the manner so required and give a true and
fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state
of affairs of the Company as at March 31 2021, its profit including other Comprehensive
Income, the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended
on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements in accordance with the
Standards on Auditing, as specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Our Responsibilities
under those standards are further described in the “Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of
the Standalone Financial Statements” section of our report. We are independent of the
Company in accordance with the “Code of Ethics” issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of
the financial statements under the provisions of the Act and the rules framed thereunder,
and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements
and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Standalone Financial Statements.

Key Audit Matters

Key Audit Matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the Standalone Financial Statements for the financial year ended
March 31 2021. There were no key audit matters and so the same have not been commented
upon.

Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Governance for the
Standalone Financial Statements

The Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the matters stated in Section 134(5) of
the Act with respect to the preparation of these Standalone Financial Statements that give a
true and fair view of the financial position, financial performance (including other
comprehensive income), changes in equity and cash flows of the Company in accordance with
the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including Indian Accounting Standard
(Ind AS) specified under Section 133 of the Act, read with the Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of
the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds and other irregularities;
selection and application of appropriate accountingpolicies; making judgments and estimates
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that are reasonable and prudent; and design, implementation and maintenance of adequate
internal financial controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and
completeness of the accounting records, relevant to the preparation and presentation of the
Standalone Financial Statements that give a true and fair view and are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Standalone Financial Statements, management is responsible for assessing
the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters
related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting unless management
either intends to liquidate the Company or to cease operations, or has no realistic alternative
but to do so.

The Board of Directors are also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting
Process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Standalone Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Standalone Financial
Statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error,
and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable assurance is a high
level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud
or error and are considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably
be expected to influence the ecconamic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
Standalone Financial Statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain
professional skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

s Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Standalone Financial
Statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and appropriate
to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatement
resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve
collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of
internal control.

s Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design
audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under Section 143(3)(i)
of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on whether the Company
has adequate internal financial controls with reference to financial statements in place
and the operating effectiveness of such controls.

e« Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
accounting estimates and related disclosures made by management.

e« Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of
accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty
exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If weconclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the
related disclosures in the Standalone Financial Statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit evidence
obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions
may cause the Company to cease to continue as a going concern.
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e Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Standalone Financial
Statements, including the disclosures, and whether the Standalone Financial
Statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner that
achieves fair presentation.

We communicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings including any significant
deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with them all
relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our independence,
and where applicable, related safeguards.

From the matters communicated with those charged with governance, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the Standalone Financial Statements of
the financial year ended March 31, 2021 and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public disclosure
about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine that a matter
should not be communicated in our report because the adverse consequences of doing so
would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest benefits of such
communication.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

(1) As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2016 (“the Order”) issued by
the Central Government of India in terms of Section 143(11) of the Act, we give in
“Annexure - A", a statement on the matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the
Order, to the extent applicable.

(2) As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

a. We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the
best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

b. In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the
Company so far as it appears from our examination of those books;

c. The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and Loss (including Other
Comprehensive Income), the Statement of Changes in Equity and the Statement
of Cash Flows dealt with by this report are in agreement with the books of account;

d. In our opinion, the aforesaid Standalone Financial Statements comply with the
Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act read with
relevant rules issued thereunder, as amended;

e. On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March
31, 2021, and taken on record by the Board of Directors, none of the directors is
disqualified as on March 31, 2021 from being appointed as a director in terms of
Section 164(2) of the Act;

f. With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls with reference to
these Standalone Financial Statements and the operating effectiveness of such
controls, we give our separate report in “Annexure - B” of this report;



Agrawa Tondon & CO. Room No.: 7, 1¢ Floor, §9 Bentinck Street

(Formerly: Agrawal Sanjay & Company) Kolkata - 700 069
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Website: www.agrawalsanjay.com
Firm Registration No. : 329088E E-mail id: agrawaltondon2019@gmail.com

g. In our opinion and as per the explanations given to us, the managerial
remuneration paid / provided by the Company, if any, to its directors during the
year is in accordance with the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to
the Act;

h. With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as
amended, in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its Financial Statements;

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CQO,
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 329088E

Sanjay Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 056902

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 315t August, 2021

UDIN: 21056902AAAAACT7510



AngWGI Tondon & Co- Room No.: 7, 1# Floor, 59 Bentinck Street

(Formerly: Agrawal Sanjay & Company) Kolkata - 700 0469
CHARTERED ACCOUNTANTS Website: www.agrawalsanjay.com
Firm Registration No. : 32908BE E-mail id: agrawaltondon2019@gmail.com

Annexure — A
To the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalome financial
statements of MKJ Developers Ltd

[Referred to in paragraph 1 under “Repart on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” section
of our Report of even date]

(i) The Company does not have any property, plant and equipment during the year.
Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(i) of the Order are not applicable to the
Company.

(ii) According to the information and explanations provided to us and in our opinion, the

management has conducted physical verification of inventories at reasonable intervals
during the year. As informed, no material discrepancies were noticed on such physical
verification.

(iti) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has
granted loans to companies covered in the register maintained under section 189 of
the Act.

a. According to information and explanations provided to us and based on the
audit procedures conducted by us, we are of the opinion that the terms and
conditions on which such loans have been granted are not prejudicial to the
interest of the Company.

b. The principal and interest in respect of such loans are repayable on demand.

c. According to information and explanations provided to us in respect of the
aforesaid loans, there is no overdue amount of loans outstanding as on
balance sheet date.

(iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the
company has complied with the provisions of section 185 and 186 of the Act In respect
of loans and investments.

(v) The Company has not accepted any deposits from the public. Accordingly, the
pravisions of clause 3(v) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(vi) As informed to us, the maintenance of cost records has not been specified by the
Central Government under sub-section (1) of Section 148 of the Act, in respect of the
activities carried out by the Company.

(vii) (a) The Company is generally regular in depositing with appropriate authorities,
undisputed statutory dues including Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance,
Income-tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise,
Cess and Other Statutory Dues applicable to it.

(b) According to the information and explanations provided to us, no undisputed
amounts payable in respect of Provident Fund, Employees’ State Insurance, Income-
tax, Sales Tax, Goods and Services Tax, Duty of Customs, Duty of Excise, Cess and
Other Statutory Dues were outstanding, at the year end, for a period of more than six
months from the date they became payable.

(viii)  In our opinion and according to the information and explanations provided to us, the
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Company has not taken any loan from the government, financial institutions or banks
and also has not issued any debentures. Accordingly, the provisions of clause 3(viii)
of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(ix) Based upon the audit procedures performed and the information and explanations
provided by the management, the company has not raised any money by way of initial
public offer or further public offer including debt instruments and term loans.

(%) Based upon the audit procedures performed for the purpose of reporting the true and
fair view of the Financial Statements and according to the information and
explanations provided by the management, we report that no fraud by the Campany
or no material fraud on the Company by the officers and employees of the Company
has been noticed or reported during the year.

(xi) According to the information and explanations provided by the management, the
managerial remuneration has been paid or provided in accordance with the requisite
approvals mandated by the provisions of Section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act.

(xii))  In our opinion, the Company is not a Nidhi Company. Accordingly, the provisions of
clause 3(xii) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xiii) According to the information and explanations provided to us, all transactions with
the related parties are in compliance with Sections 177 and 188 of the Act, where
applicable and the details have been disclosed in the financial statements, as required
by the applicable accounting standards.

(xiv) The company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares
or fully or partly convertible debentures during the year under review. Accordingly,
the provisions of clause 3(xiv) of the Order are not applicable to the Company.

(xv) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company has not
entered into any non-cash transactions with directors or persons connected with him
during the year.

(xvi) According to the information and explanations provided to us, the Company is not
required to get registered under Section 45-IA of the Reserve Bank of India Act, 1934.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 329088E

Sanjay Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 056902

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 315t August, 2021

UDIN: 21056902AAAAAC7510
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Annexure - B
To the Independent Auditor’s Report of even date on the Standalone financial
statements of MKJ Developers Ltd

[Referred to in paragraph 2 under “Report on other Legal and Regulatory Requirements” in our
Independent Auditors’ Report of even date/

Report on the Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting under Clause (i) of
sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial controls over financial reporting of MKJ Developers
Ltd (“the Company”) as of March 31, 2021 in conjunction with our audit of the Standalone
Financial Statements of the Company for the year ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal
financial controls based on the internal control ever financial reporting criteria established
by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated in the
Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting (the
“Guidance Note”) issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient conduct
of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the
prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as required
under the Act.

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over
financial reporting with reference to these Standalone Financial Statements based on our
audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note and the Standards on
Auditing as specified under Section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent applicable to an audit of
internal financial controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and,
both issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. Those Standards and the
Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and plan and perform the
audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate internal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively
in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness.
Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included obtaining an
understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk that
a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness
of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the
auditor’s judgement, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the
financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide
a basis for our audit opinion on the internal financial controls over financial reporting with
reference to these Standalone Financial Statements.
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Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide
reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of
standalone financial statements for external purposes in accordance with generally accepted
accounting principles. A company's internal financial control over financial reporting includes
those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in
reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the transactions and dispositions of the assets
of the company; (2) provide reasonable assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary
to permit preparation of standalone financial statements in accordance with generally
accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being
made only in accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company;
and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of
unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a
material effect on the financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls, material
misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also, projections of any
evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future periods are
subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become
inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the
policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, the Company has, in all material respects, an adequate internal financial
control system over financial reporting and such internal financial controls over financial
reporting were operating effectively as at March 31 2021, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components
of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over
Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 329088E

Sanjay Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 056902

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 315t August, 2021

UDIN: 21056202AAAAACT510



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

(CIN: L45209WB1983PLC035740)

Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

. ASSETS

1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a) Financial Assets
i) Investmenis
i) Loans
iii) Cther Financial Assets
b) Other Mon-Current Assets
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASSETS

2. CURRENT ASSETS

a) Inventories
b} Financial Assets

I) Cash & Cash Equivalenis

ii) Loans

i) Other Financial Assets
¢} Current Tax Assets (Met)
d) Other Current Assels

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

Il EQUITY & LIABILITIES

1. EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital
b) Other Equity
TOTAL EQUITY

2. LIABILITIES
Mon-Currant Liabilties
Deferred Tax Liahilities (Net)

Current Liabilities
a) Financial Liabilities
i) Borrowings
ii) Other Financial Liabil ties
b) Other Current Liakilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Significant Accounting Policies and Noles

forming part of the Financial Statements

(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

As at As at

31st March, 2021

T T

=33

Note

MNa.
2 325.26
3 0.562
4 8.12
] 2.50
] 248018
T 35.06
B 2,276.96
a =
10 30.43
1" 0.48
12 250.49
13 1,080.33
14
5 3,776.50
1€ 5.67
17 3.23

The accompanying notes form an inrtegral part of the financial statamarts

As per our report of even date attached.

For Agrawal Tondan & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 329088E

Sdi-

(Sanjay Agrawal)
Partner

Membership No. 056802

Place: Kolkata

Datad: 31st August 2021

31st March, 2020

325.26
0.52
19.62
2.50
334,40 347.90
272188
28 94
2.500.80
5,302.99
98 91
11.41
4,823.07 10.665.03
25049
1,184 37
1,340.82 1,434.86
31.25 31.25
3684.07
9,162 61
014
3,785.40 8 546.82
5i15?.4? 11.012.93

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Mahendra Kumar Jalan (DIN: 00593710)

Director

8d/-

Harikeshwar Sah (DIN : 00214759}

Director



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

{CIN: L45209WB1533PLC035740)

Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31st March, 2021

Nole For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
INCOME:
I. Revenue from Operations
Sale of securities - 3.00
I1. Other Income 18 21566 217.54
Il. Total Revenue 215.66 220.54
Iil. EXPENDITURE: =
Changes in Inventory of traded goods 19 241.73 72,65
Employee Benelit Expenses iy 1.66 1.58
Development Expenses 21 827 14,31
Finance Cost 22 4077 -
Qther Expenses 23 17.27 431,23
Tolal Expenses 304.70 518.77
IV. Profit/(Loss) before tax (94.04) (299.23)
V. Tex Expenses
- For Current tax 31.00
- For earlier years (0.15)
3085
- Daferred tax - (870.13) (639.28)
VI. Profit / {Loss) for the year (IV - V) (94.04) 540.05
Vil. Cther Comprehensive Income not to be reclassifiec
to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Fair Value of Equity Instrumenls -
Tex on items that will not de reclassified to Profit & Loss -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - -
Vill. Total Comprehenslve Income for the year (94.04) 540.05
IX. Earnings per Equity Share: 26
(1) Basic (3.75) 21.56
(2) Diluted {3.75) 21.56

{(Amount in ¥ Lakhs)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes forming part of 1.33

the Financial Stalements

The accamparying notes form an integral part of the tinancial statemenis

As per our report of even date attached.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Charlerad Accountants
Firm Registration No. 329088E

Sd/-

[Sanjay Agrawal)
Partner

Mambership No. 056902

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 31sl August 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sdl-
Mahendra Kumar Jalan (DIN: 00598710)
Director

Sdf-
Harikeshwar Sah (DIN : 002147589)
Director



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

(CIN: L45208WEB 1983PLCO35740)

A, Cash flow from Operating Activities:

Net Profit before Tax and Exceptlonal Hams:

a) Loss on Sale of Investments

b} Inerest Received

Operating Profit before Working Capital changes

Adjustments for :-
a) Inventcries
b} Mon-Current Assets - Loars
c)] Non-Curenl Firancial Assols
) Other Non-Current Assets
@) Current Firancial Assets - Loans
f) Other Current Financal Assets
g) Other Cuant Assets
Waorking Capital Changes
Cash generated from operations
Less: Direct Taxes Paid
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activities

B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
a) Sale of investmants

o) Purchase of invastmeants

Net Cash Flow from Investing Activitles

C. Cash Flow from Financing Actlvites:
a) Shert-term Borrowings

b} Interest Received

Net Cash Flow from Financing Aclivitles

Net Inflow | (Dutflow) (A + B + C )

D. Net changes in Cash and Cash Equivalents
8) Cash and Casn Eguivalart - at commencemer!
b) Cash and Cash Equivalent - at close

Notes:

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

31st March, 2021

{Amount In ¥ Lakhs)

st March, 2020

(94.04) (299.23)
. 423.34
(215.65) (245.65) (217.54) 205,80
(309.70) (93.44)
241,73 72.68
13,50 2
223,94 193.89
£,302.09 1,656.41
10.94 [8.82)
(€,156.94} 12,441 93)
.08 (0.02)
(5,360.75} (527.81)
(3,670.45) (671.25)
66.47 67.45
(3,601,98) (688.70)
2 347.96
" 347,96
3,392.43 -
21566 217.64
3,608.09 217.54
6.11 |12 3.20|
6.11 {123.20)
28.94 152.14
35.05 28.94

a. The above Cash Flow Statemert has been prepared under the "Indiract Meothod” as set out in the Indian Accourting Standard (Ind-AS -7} -

Cash Flow Statamant.

b. Paticulars

Cash & Cash Equlvalents comprises of:

As at
31st March, 2021

As at
31si March, 2020

Cash an Hand 022 019
Balances with Bariks:

- in Currant Accounts 34.83 2675
Cheques, draft in hand - -
Cash & Cash Equivalents |n Cash Flow Statement 35.05 28.94

L. As at MNon-Cash As at

Fasthies 01.04.2020 SmAfoe Changes 31.03.2021
Borrowings - Currart 84,07 3,302.43 - - 3,776.5C

As per our reporl of even dale altached

For Agrawal Tendon & Ce.
Charlered Accountanls
Firm Reglstration No. 320028E

Sd/-

(Sanjay Agrawal)
Partner

Membership Mo. DE68C2

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 31st Auqust 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Direclors

Sdi/-
Mahendra Kumar Jalan (DIN: 005386710)
Directar

8d/-
Harikeshwar Sah (DIN : 00214759)
Director



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

(CIN: 4§3§9WB1983P LC035740)

Statament of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021

A) Equity Shara Capital

Particulars Nos, ¥ in lakhs
Ag at 1st April 2019 25,04,929 250.48
Changes during the year
As at 31st March, 2020 25,04,929 250.49
Changes during the year
As al 31st March,2021 25,04,929 250.49
B) Other Equity
Reserve & Surplus Items of QCI
Particulars Securities General Retained Total
: : ; : : Other ltems

Premium Reserves Earnings ;

% in takhs Zin lakhs 7 in lakhs < in lakhs Tinlakhs
Balance as at 1st April, 2018 625.00 464,52 2,763.83 (2,757.95) 1,095.40
Profit for the year - : 540.05 - 540.05
Adjustment for Sale of Investments - - (451.08) - (451.08)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 £25.00 464,52 2,852.80 (2,757.95) 1,184.37
Profit for the year - - (94.04) (94.04)
Adjustment for Sale of Investments - . - - -
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - . - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 625.00 464.52 2,758.76 (2,757.95) 1,090.33

As per our report of even date attached.

Far Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 329083E

Sdf-

(Sanjay Agrawal)
Partner

Membership No. 056802

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 31st August 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-

Mahendra Kumar Jalan (DIN: 00598710)

Directar

Sd/-

Harikeshwar Sah (DIN : 0021475¢)

Director




MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED
(CIN: L45209WB1983PLC035740)

Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

Corporate Information

MKJ Developers Limited (“the Company™) is a public limited Company incorporated and domiciled
in India. The Company is primarily engaged in the Real Estate Devclopment Business. The
registered office. ot the Company is located at Sagar Estate, 3rd Floor, 2, Clive Ghat Street, Kolkata-
700 001. '

Note 1: Significant accounting policies

This note provides a list of the significant accounting policies adopted in the preparation of these
financial statements. These policies have been consistently applied to all the years presented, unless
otherwise stated. ' i

(a)

Basis of Preparation

These accounis have been prepared in accordance with Indian Accounting Standards (Ind
AS) prescribed under Section 133 of the Companies Act 2013 ("Act") read with Rule 3 of
the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules 2015 and the relevant amendment rules
issued thereafter. These financial statements arc prepared in accordance under the historical
cost convention on the accrual basis except for cerfain financial instruments which are
measured at fair value at the end of cach accounting period.

Standards issued but not effective:

Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) notifies new standards or amendments to the
existing standards. There is no such notification which would have been applicable from
April 01, 2020

Impact of COVID-19:

Due to the outbreak of Coronavirus disease (COVID-19), the Government of India declared
lock-down effective 25" March, 2020 and in compliance of the instructions issued by the
Central and State Governments, the operations of the Company had to be suspended at all
ongoing activities. This impacted the normal business operations of the Company by way of
interruption in activitics, supply chain disruption and all availability of personnel during the
lock-down period.

The Company has considered the possible impacts on the carrying value of asscts and
contractual terms with customers and vendors. The Company, as at the date of these
financial results has used the available information o assess the impact on the future
performance of the Company. Based on the information, the Company has made assessment
and expects that the carrying amount of assets reported in these financials as at 31* March,
2020 are fully recoverable,

The Company has also estimated the future cash flows with the possible effects that may
result from the COVID-19 pandemic and does not foresee overall adverse impacl on
realizing its assets and meeting its liabilities as and when they fall due. The actual impact of
the COVID-19 pandemic may vary from that estimated as at the date of approval of these
financial result.

The Central and State Governments has since significantly relaxed the lock-down
restrictions. The company has resumed its operations though not at full scale. The Company
will continue to closely observe the evolving scenario and take into account any future
developments arising out of the same.
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Significant Accounting Policies end Notes to Financial iztements

(b)

(c)

(d)

Foreign currencies

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in profit or loss in the period in
which they arise except for exchange differences on foreign currency borrowings relating
to assats under construction for future productive use, which are included in the cost of
those assets when they ‘are regarded as an adjustment to interest costs on those foreign
currency borrowings. '

Revenue recognition

The Company derives revenue development of Real Estate,

Rovenue is recognised o2 satisfaciion of performance obligation al an amount that reflects
the consideration to which the Company expeets to be entitled 1n exchange of selling of
productq to customsrs,

The Company’s performance obligation is on development of Real Estate.

The Company has adopted Ind AS 113 “Revénue from Contracts with Customers’ which
introduces a five-step approach to measuring and recognising ravenue from contracts with
customers. Under Ind AS-115, revenue is recognised on satisfaction of performance
obligation at an amount that reflects the consideration to which an entity expects to be
entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services fo a customer,

Contract assets and Contract Liability

Revenue in excess of invoicing -are classified as contract assets (which we referred as
urbilled revenue) while invoicing in excess of revenues are clac iied as contract liabilitics
(whlch we refer as unearnéd revenue)

Interest income is recogmsed using the Lfft,n,lwc interest method. All other income are
recognised on accrual basis,

Income Tax

The income tax expense or credit for the period is the tax payable on the current period’s
taxable income based on the applicable income tax rate for each jurisdiction adjusted by
changes in deferred tax assets and liabilities attributable to temporary differences and to
unused tax losses.

Deferred income tax is provided in full, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their carrying
amounts in the financial statements. Deferred income tax is determined using tax rales (and
laws) that have been enacted or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting petiod and
are expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or the deferred
income tax liability is settled.

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax
losses only if it is probable that future taxable amounis will be available to utilise those
temporary differences and losses.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

(€)

M

(2

()

Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right to
offset current tax assets and liabilities and when the deferred tax balances relate to same
taxation authority. Current tax assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a
legally enforceable right to offset and intends either to settle on a net basis, or to realise the
assel and seltle the liability simultaneously.

Current and deferred tax is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to
items recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in cquily. In this case, the tax
is also recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

Impairment of assets

Assets are tested for impairment whenever the events or changes in circumstances indicale
that the carrying amount may not he recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the
amount by which the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The
recoverable amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs of disposal and value in
use. Non-financial assets that suffered an impairment are reviewed for possible reversal of
the impairment at the end of each reporting period.

Cash and cash equivalents

For the purposc of presentation in the statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
includes cash on hand, deposits held at call with the financial institutions, other short term,
highly liquid investments with original maturities of threc months or less (except the
instruments which are pledged) that are readily convertible to known amounts of cash and
which are subject lo an insignificant risk of changes in value, and bank overdrafts. Bank
overdrafts are shown within borrowings in current liabilities in the balance sheet.

Inventories ;
Inventorics arc valued at lower of cost or market price in case of securities and at lower of
cost or net realisable value in other cascs.

Financial Instruments .
Financial assets and financial liabilities are recognised when a Company becomes a party
to the contractual provisions of the instruments.

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction
costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and
financial liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabiiities at fair value through
profit or loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or
financial liabilities, as appropriale, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly
attributable to the acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through
profit or loss are recognised immediately in profit or loss.

All recognised financial assets are subsequéntly measured in their entirety at either
amortised cost or fair valuc, depending on the classification of the financial assets.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Noles to Financial Siatemenls

Investmen and otirer financial assets

(®

(ii)

(i)

Classification
The company classifies its {inancial assets in the fellowing measurement categories —

Those to be measured subseeuently at fair value (either through other comprehensive income
or through profit or loss), and
Those measured at amortised cost

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing tie financial assets
and the coniractual terms of cash flows,

For assets measured at fair value, gaing and losses will either be recorded in profit or loss or
other u,mpruhumw income. For inveslments in debt instruments, this will deperd on the
business model in which the investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this
will depend on whether the company has made an'irrevocable election at the time of initial
recognition to account for the equity mveqtrnent at the fair value through other
comprehensive income.

Measurement

At initial recognition, the company measures a financial asset at its fair value plus, in the
case of a financial asset nal at fair valuc through profil or loss, transaction cost that are
directly attributable to the acquisition of the financial asset. Transaction costs of financial
assets carried at fair value throuigh profit or loss are expensed in profit or loss.

The cﬂmpany subsequently measures all equity investments al fair value. Where the
company’s management has- electad to present fair value gains and losses on equity
invesiments in OCI, there is no subsequent reclassification of fair value gains and losses to
prefit or loss. Dividends from such investments are recognised in profit or loss as mhur
income when the company’s right to |{:ce1vc payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of ﬁnanci:'ﬂ. assets at fair value through profit or loss are recognised
in other gain/ (losscs) in the statement of profit or loss. lmpairment losses (and reversal of
impairment losses) on equity investments mﬁasured at FVOCI are not reported separately
from other changes in fair value.

Impairment of financial assects

The company assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses associated with
its assets catried at amoriised cost and FVOCI debt instruments. The impairment
methodology applied depends on wnvther there has been a significant increase in credit risk.

For trade receivables only, lht. company app] ies the simplified approach permitted by Ind AS
109 Financial Insttuments, which fequires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from
initial recognition of the receivables.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

(iv) De-recognition of financial assets _
A financial asset is derecognised only when

»  The company has transferred the rights to receive cash flows from the financial asset;
or

e  Retains the contractual rights to receive the cash flows of the financial asset, but
assumes a contractual obligation to pay the cash flows to one or more recipients.

Financial Liabilities and equity Instruments

(i) Classification as debt or equity
Debt and equity instruments are classified as cither financial liabilities or as equity in
accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangement.

(i) Equity Instroments

An equity instrument is any contract that cvidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entily afler deducting all of its liabilities. Bquity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received, net of direct issue costs.

(iii) Compound financial instruments

The component parts of compound instruments (convertible instruments) issued by the
Company are classitied separately as financial liabililics and equity in accordance with the
substance of the contractual arrangement. At the date of issue, the fair value of the liability
component is estimated using the prevailing market intercst rate for a similar non-
convertible instrument. This amount is recorded as a liability on an amortised cost basis
using the effective interest method until extinguished upon conversion or at the instrument’s
maturity date. The equity component is determined by deducting the amount of the liability
component from the fair value of the compound instrument as a whole. This is recognised
and included in equity, net of income tax effects, and is not subsequently remeasured.

(iv) Financial guarantee contract liabilities .
Financial guarantee contract liabilities are initially measurcd at their fair values and, if not
designated as at FVTPL, are subsequently measured at the higher of:

¢ The amount of the obligation under the contract, as determined in accordance with
Ind-AS 37 Provisions, Contingent Liabilities and Contingent Assets; and

o the amount initially recognised Jess, where appropriate, cumulative amortisation
- recognised in accordance with the revenue recognition policies.

(v) Financial Liabilities
Financial liabilities are classified as either financial liabilities “at FVTPL’ or ‘other financial
liabilities’.
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

Financial Liabilities at FVTIL

Financial liabilitics are classificd us al FVTPL when the Onancial ]ubihl\' is either held for
trading or it is deslgnated a, at FVTPL.

A financial liability is classificd as held for trading if:

e it has been acqulred or mcurred pn"cxpall\« for the purpose of repurchasing it in the
near term; or

e -on initial recognition it is part of a portfolio of identified financiai instruments that the
Corrpany manages together and for which there is evidence of a recent aciual pattern
of short-term profit taking; or

e itis a derivative that is not designated and effective as a hedging instrument.

A financial liability omel than i ;manual hc,blhry held for tradmg may also be designated as
at FVTPL upon initiai recognition if:

o such designation eliminates or significantly reduces a measurement or recognition
inconsistency that would otherwise arise: or

e the financial liability forms part of a Company of financial assets or financial
liabilities or both, which is managed and its performance is evaluated on a fair value
basis, in accordance with the Company’s documented risk management or
investment strategy, and mfo,ma.mn about the Companying is provided internally on
that basis; or

e it forms part of & contract containing one or more embedded derivatives, end Ind-AS

109 Financial Insinments { urmlib the (:.hlhc cambined contract to be designated as at
FVTPL.

Financial liabilities at FVTPL are stated at fair value, with any gains or losses arising on
remeasurcment recognised in the statement of prafit and loss, except for the amount of
change in the fair value of the financial liability that is attributable to changes in the credit
risk of that liability which is recognised in other comprehensive income.

The net gain or loss recognised in the statement of profit and loss incorporates any interest
paid on the financial liability.

(vi) Other financial liabilitics
Other financial liabilities, including borrowings, are initially measured at fair value, net of
{ransaction costs. :

Other financial liabilities are subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective
interest method, with interest expense recognised on an effective yield basis.

The effective intercst method is a method of calculating the amortised cost of a financial
liability and of allocating interest expense over the relevant period. The effective interest
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Significant Accounting Policies and Notes to Financial Statements

rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments through the expected
life of the financial liability, or (where appropriate) a shorter period, to the net carrying
amount on initial recognition.

(vii) Offsetting financial instruments

(k)

0]

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in the balance sheet
when there is a lcgally enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts and there is an
intention to settle on a net basis or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously.
The legally enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default, insolvency or
bankruptcy of the Company or the counterparty.

Property, plant and equipment

Property, Plant and Equipment are stated at cost, less accumulated depreciation (other than
Freehold Land) and accumulated impairment loss, if any, The cost of Property, Plant &
Equipment comprises of its purchase price, including import duties and other non-
refundable taxes or levies and any directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its
working condition for its intended use. Interest and other financial charges on loans
borrowed specifically for acquisition of capital assets are capitalised till the start of
commercial production. Depreciation is provided on (he straight line method over the
estimated useful lives of assets and are in line with the requirements of Part C of Schedule 1T
of the Companies Act, 2013,

Advances paid towards the acquisition of property, plant and equipment outstanding at each
balance sheet date is classified as Capital Advances under other Non-Current Assets and the
cost of assets not put to use before such date are disclosed under “Capital Work in Progress’.
The cost and related accumulated depreciation arc eliminated from the Financial Statements
upon sale or retirement of the assct and the resultant gains or losses are recognized in the
Statement of Profit & Loss. The method of depreciation, useful lives and residual values are
reviewed al each financial year end.

Intangiblec asscts .

Software : -

Cost of software is amortized over a period of 6-10 years, being the estimated useful life as
per the management estimates. The Cost of Intangible asscts arc amortized on a straight
line basis over their estimated usetul life. .

Borrowing Costs

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs incurred.
Borrowings arc subsequently stated at amortised cost. Any difference between the
proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the redemption value is recognised in the income
statement over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest rate method.
Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Company has an unconditional
right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months after the reporting date.

Borrowing costs directly attributable to the acquisition, construction or production of
qualifying assets, which are assets that necessarily take a substantial period of time to get
ready for their intended use or sale, are added to the cost of those assets, until such time as
the assets are substantially ready for their intended use or sale.
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All other borrewing costs are recognised in the statement of Ploft dhd Loss in the period
in which they are incurred.

(m)  i'rovisions
Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation as a result of a past
event, fer which it is probable that a cash outflow will be required and a reliable estimate
can be made of the amount of the obligation. Contingent liabilitics arc disclosed when the
Company has a possible obligation or-a present obligation and it is probable that a cash
outflow will not be required to settle the obligation. Provisions & Contingent Liabilities are
revalued at each Balance Sheet date. ' '

(n) Employee benefits

(I) Defined contribution plans
The company pays provident fund contributions to publicly administered provident funds
as per local regulations. The company has not further payient obligations once the
_ contributions have been paid. The co: iiribuiions are accounied for as defined contribution
plun@, and the mntrloatmns are lewrm.:wu as employee benefit cxpensc when they are
due. RN

(i) Other long-term employee benefits obligations
The Company has a pollcy on compensated absences which are both accumulaung and
non-accumulating in nature. The Company's liability is actuarially determined using the
Projected Unit Credit method at the end of the year in accordance with the provision of
Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. The Company recognizes the net obligation of a defined
benefit plan in its balance sheet as liability, Gains and losses through re-measurements of
the net defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized in Statement of Profit & Loss.

(i) Post-employment obligations

The Company operates a defised benefit gratuity plan in India, comprising of Gratuity
fund with Life Insurance Corporation of India. The Company's liability is actuarially
determined using the Projected Unit Credit method at the end of the vear in accordance
with the provision of Ind AS 19 - Employee Benefits. The Company recognizes the net
obligation of a defined benefit plan in its balance sheet as an asset or liability. Gains and
losses through re-meastrements of the nct defined benefit liability/(asset) are recognized
in other comprehensive income and are not reclassified to profit or loss in subsequent
periods.

The actual return of the portfolio of plan assets, in excess of the yields computed by
applying the discount rate used to measure the defined benefit obligation is recognized in
other comprehensive income. The effect of any plan amendments are recognized in the
Statement of Profit & Loss.

(o) Earnings per sharc
‘I'he basic earnings per share (“EPS”) is computed by dividing the net profit after tax for the
year by the weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year. For
computing Diluted earnings per. share potential equity shares are added to the above weighted
average number of shares.



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

Notes to the Financial Statements:

(CIN: L45203WB1983PLC035740)

Amount In T lakhs
2. Investments (Non-Current): :
Particulars Face 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
Value Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
T
A. Investments in Equity Instruments:
(i} Quoted:
(a) Measurad at Falr Value through Other Comprehensive
Income
M. Enterprises Lid. 10.00 159 0.41 159 0.41
Total (1) 0.41 0.41
(il} Unquoted:
(a) Measured at Falr Value through
Other Comprehensive Income
Bengal Bonded Warehouse Lid. 12.50 4,665 28.02 4 EBS 28.02
Dankuni Projects Lid. 10.00 4,28,800 77.57 4,28 800 Tr.67
Edward Keventar Pvt. Lid. 10.00 1,13,000 183.47 1,13,000 183.47
Sasmal Infrastructure Pvi. Lid. 10.00 25,000 20.19 25,000 20.18
gggzs 309.25
{b) Measured al Fair Value through Profit and Loss
Adla Tracome P.Lid. 10.00 1,500 0.15 1,600 0.15
Elpack India Ltd. 10.00 11,660 0.1 11,660 0.1
Id=al Point Services Pvt, Lid. 10.00 2,000 0.20 2,000 0.20
Krishna Futuretrade P. Lid. 10.00 1,500 0.15 1,500 0.16
Navolech Exim P.Ltd. 10.00 1,500 0.15 1,500 015
Nirmalkun] Tracom P.LTd. 10.00 1,500 0.15 1,500 015
Rajesh Dealtrade P. Ltd. 10.00 1,600 0.15 1,500 0.15
Shew Merchandise P. Ltd. 1.00 1,500 0.15 1,500 015
Shivamani Distributors P, Lid. 10.00 1,500 0.15 1,500 015
Shyamal Dealtrade P. Lid. 1.00 1,5C0 0.15 1,500 0.15
1.51 1.51
Total (ii) 310.76 310.76
Total (A)=(1+11) 11147 311.17
B. Investment In Preference Instruments:
Unquoted:
Measured at Fair Value through
Other Comprahensiva Income
Edward Keventer Pvt. Lid. 100.00 13,010 13.08 13,010 13.09
Total (B) 13.09 13.08
C. Investments in Partnership Firms:
Satyam Constructions - 1.00 - 1.00
Total (C) 1.00 1.00
Total (A+B+C) 325.26 325.26
Aggregate market value of quoted Investments 0.41 0.41
Aggregale amount of unquated invastments 32485 324 85
325.26 325.26
3. Loans: 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
2in lakhs Zin lakhs
Unsecured, Considared Good
Security Deposits 0.52 0.52
0.52 0.52
4, Other Financial Assets 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Zin lakhs T in lakhs
Advances 6.12 19.62
5 Other Non-Currant Assets 31-Mar-21 -Mar-20
Tin lakhs Tin lakhs
Advances for land 2.50 250
2.50 2.50

———————
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Notes to the Financial Statements:

6. Inventories:
; Face 31st March 2021 31st March 2020
P | are
il Value Nos. Zin lakns Nos, T in [akhs
z .
A. Development Wark in Progress
Land 315.3¢ 315.39
Development Expense
As per last Accounts 1,012.48 983,15
Add: Expenses for the year 8.27 1,020.73 14.31 101246
B. Securities
Equity Instruments:
a) Quoted:
Madanlal Ltd. 10.00 '10,00,000 - 10,00,000 250.00
MEKJ Enterprises Lid. 10.00 G,50,000 20315 5,50,000 29215
Quadrant Telsventures Ltd. 1.00 12,00.000 2.28 12,00,000 2.28
Right Inruva Know-How Ltd, 1C.00 2,50,000 125.00 2,350,000 125.00
(Formerly: The Right Addrass Lid.)
Total - (a) 420.43 670.43
b) Unquoted:
Keventer Agro Lid 10.00 19,05 200 72380 19,085,200 T23 B0
Keventer Projects Lid. 10.00 1,50,020 - 1,50,020 -
Microwave Cemmunications Ltd, 10.00 500,000 - 5,00,000 -
" Total - (b) 723.60 723.60
Preference Shares:
a} Unguoted:
Keventer Capital Limited 10.0C 88,80 933 &8 80,933
(0%  Non-Convertible Praference
Shares issued by Keventer Cagital
Ltd. In pursuance of demerger of
Keventer Agro Ltd in the ratio of
14:3)
Total = (c) -
Total (B) - (a+ b +c) 1,144.03 1,394.03
Tetal-(A+B) 2,480.15 1,88
7. Cash & Cash Equivalents
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Zin lakhs Zin lakhs
Balance with Banks 34.83 28.75
Cash an Hand 0.22 0.18
35.05 28.94
8. Leans
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
7 in lakhs Tin lakhs
Considered good, unsecured
Loans given 2,276.98 2 500.90
2,276.96 2!500.90
9, Other Financial Assets
J1-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Tin lakhs TIn lakhs
Advances to Related Partias - 5,302.99
- 5!302.99
10. Current Tax Assets (Met)
31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Tin lakhs Tinlakhs
Incomea tax payments 30.43 £8.91
30.43 98.91
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11. Other Current Assets

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Tin lakhs Zin lakhs
GST Input 047 11.41
Prepald Expenses 0.01 -
0.48 11.41
12. Equity Share Capital
Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
Nos. Amount Nos. Amount
Authorised :
Equity shares of ¥ 10/~ each 27,50,000 275.00 27,50,000 275.00
Issued, Subscribed & Paid-up:
Equity shares of ¥ 10/- sach 14,989,000 149.00 14,898,000 148.80
fully paid-up in cash.
Equity shares of ¥ 10/~ sach 10,05,929 100.58 10,05 828 100.59
issued for consideration other than in cash
Total 25,04,929 250.49 25,04,929 250.49
The reconciliation of the number of shares outstanding:
Particulars As at As at
31at March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Mos. Mos.
At the beginring of the year 25,04,925 25,04,928
Changes during the year = A
At the end of the year 25,04,928 25.04.929

The details of Shareholders halding more than 5% shares:

Name of the Shareholder

Ag at 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2020

No., of Shares % held Me. of Shares % held
Madanlal Ltd. 4,41,830 17.63% 4,41 €30 17.83%
MKJ Enterprises Lid. 4,16,67C 16.63% 4,16 €70 16.63%
Right Innuva Know-How Ltd.” 3,03 462 12.11% 3,03,452 1211%
(Formerly: The Right Address Ltc)
Mahendra Kumar Jalan 2,29.350 9.18% 2,29,350 0.16%
Twenty First Century Securities Ltd. 1,52,400 6.08% 1,52,400 8.08%

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to the Equity Shares:
The Equity Shares of the Company, having par value of Rs, 10/ per share, rank parl-passuin all respects including vating rights and enlillement fo

dividend.

13. Other Equity

Reserve and Surplus
Securities Premium:
As per last accounts

General Reserves:
As per last accounts

Retained Earnings:
As per last accounts
Add; Profit during the year
Less; Adjustment for sale of investments
Closing Retained Earnings

Items of OC|

Equity Instruments through OCI:
As per last accounts
Add: OCI during the year
Closing OCI Reserve

As at 31st March, 2021

As at 31st March, 2020

Tin lakhs Zin lakhs Zin lakhs Zin lakhs
625.00 625.00
464.53 454.53
2,852.80 2,763.83
(94.04) 540.05
= (451.08)
2,758.76 2,852.80
(2,757.96) {2,757.96)
;2,?5?.982 2,757 .96
1,090.33 1,184.37

_
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14.

17.

18.

19,

20.

21,

MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED
(CIN: L45209WB1983PLC035740)

Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)
| Balance Changes Balance
as at during as at
| 01.04.2020 the year 31.03.2021
Tin lakhs < in lakhs Zin lakhs
Deferred tax on gain of investments [31.25) - (31.25)
(31.25) - (31.25)

Since it Is not probabla that future faxakle pretils will be available against which deducible temperary differences may be utilised,

henca no deferred tax assets have been recognised.

. Borrowings

Ungecured Loans:
from refated partiss
from others

. Other Financial Liabilities

Securlty Deposit Received
Liability. for Expenses
Provision for Income Tax

Qther Current Liabilities

Statutory Liabilities

Dther lncama
Interest recsived
Changes in Inventories

Inventories at closa
Inventories at commencement

Employee Beneflt Exponsas

Salaries, Wages & Bonus
Directors' Siiting Fees

Development Expense

Electricity Charges

Rates & Taxes

Legal Expenses

Repairs & Meintenance for Building
Security Guard Expenzes
Telephone Expenses

General Expenses

31-Mar-21
2in lakhs

2,713.72
1‘032.?8

3!7 76.50

31-Mar-21
Tinlakhs |

5.67

5.67

__31-Mar21
T in lakhs

323
3.23

2020-21
Zin lakhs

215 68
215.66

2020-21
Zin lakhs

2,480.15
2,721.88
241,73

2020-21
Tin lakhs

1.20
0.46
1.66

2020-21
Zin lakhs

0.04
1.32
0.10
6.76

0.08
8.27

31-Mar-20
Zin lakhs

364.07
384.07

31:Mar20
Tin lakhs

B,0£5.00

B8.81

101.00

9,162.61
31-Mar-20
Tin lakhs

0.14
0.14

2019-20
Tinlakhs

217.54
217.54

2019-20
Zin lakhs

2,721.68
2,784.53
72,65

—_———————r——————x
2019-20
Tin lakhs

1.20
038
1.58

2019-20
Zin lakhs

147
0.37
5.48
.06
7.08
004
011
14.31
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2020-21 2019-20
T in lakhs Zin lakhs
22. Finance Costs
Interest Paid 40.77 -
40.77 -
2020-21 2019-20
Tin lakhs Zin lakhs
23. Other Expenses

Rent Paid 012 012
Rales and Taxes 0.05 0.05
Legal and Profassicnal Charges 230 2.88
Loss on Sale of Investments - 423.34
Printing & Stationery 0.15 0.2¢
Postage Expenses - n.08
Advertisemant o1 0.04
Bank Charges 0.01 0.0
Filing Fees 0.03 0.52
Conveyance Expenses - 0.02
Membership & Subscription 0.25 0.25

. Share Depository Charges 0.28 0.39
Share Transfer Charges 0.05 g.02
Payment to Auditers:

- Fer Statutory Audit 0.6D 0.60

- Fer Tax Audit - -

- For Certifications 0.35 0.98 0.83 083
Geods and Service Tax Faic 12.88 018
Interest Paid 0.01 1.36
Misce!laneous Cxpenses 0.11 074

17.27 431.23

24, Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

There are no Micro, Small & Med um Entarprises, to whom the company owes duss, which are outstanding for more than 45 days as
al 31st March 2021, This mformalion as required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Develapmant Act,
2006 has been defermined to the extent such parlies have keen identified on the basis of information available with the Company.

25. Contingent Liabilitias :

Contingant liabilities not previded for adcitional income tax demand disputed by the Company and pending in appeals before tribunal:

Particulars 31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Tin lakhs gin lakhs

Assessment Year

1987-B8 1.80 1.60

2B. Earning per Share (EPS)

&l. |Particulars 2020-21 2019-20
No. $in lakhs Zin lakhs
a) |Profit f (Loss) after Taxation (¥ in Lakhs) -94.04 £40.05
b) [No.of Equity Shares (Weighted Average) { Nos.) 25,04,629 25,04,928
¢) |[Neminal value per Equity Share (%) 10.00 10.00
d) |Eaming par Equity Shara-Basic/Diluted (a / b) (T) {3.75) 2156

27. Related Party Disclosures:

{a) MNames of the relatec parties with whom significant relations exist and transactions have taken place during the year are given

below:-

() Enterprises/Associates where key management personnel Is able to exercise signiffcant influence:
Ideal Point Services Put. Ltd, Right Innuva Know-How Lid. (Formerly: The Right Addrass Ltd.)
Madanlal Ltd. Satyam Constructions
Mantu Heusing Pre;acts td, Twenty First Century Securities Ltd

MIKJ Enterprises Ltd.
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Motes fo the Financial Stalements:

(ii) Key Management Personnel ;
Shri Mahendra Kumar Jalan
Shri Harikeshwar Sah
Shri Pritha Basu
Shri Debjani Chetterjze

Pasition

Direclor
Director
Director
Director

(b} Transactions during the year with relaled parties in the crdinary course of business

Amount in ¥ Lakhs

Related parties as referred in Total
Associales / Key
Nature of transactions Enterprises Management
Personnel
a (i) above a (i) abova
Tin lakhs Tin lakhs Tin lakhs
1} Advances Given:
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 530299 - 5,302,99
(6,958.39) - (6,959.39)
Taken during the year 60.CO - €0.00
(1,458.08) - (1,458.08)
Paid during the year £,382,99 - 5,362.99
{3,114.48) - (3,114.48)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 « | s "
[h,402.60) - (5,302.98)
2) Loans Taken:
Bzlance as at 1st April, 2020 - - -
Taken during the year 4,183 84 - 3,63.84
Paid during the year 450.12 450,12
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 2,713.72 271372
3} Rent Paid 0.12 012
(0.12) - ©12)
4) Directors' Sitting Fees 0.46 c46
(0.38) (C.38)

Figures in bracket indicafe figures relating fo previous yuar.

28. Segment Reporting:

In Compliance with Indian Accounting Standard AS - 108 o1 Seginent Reporting issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of

India, the Segment Information is given below:
Particulars
1. Revenue (including taxes on Revenue)

2. Results

Segment Result

Operating Profit f (Loss)
Inerast Income

Interest (Expenses)

Profit / (Lose) befare tax
Taxation for the year

Met Profit / (Loss) for the year

Real Estate Securities Unallocated Total
Tin lakhs Zin lakhs Zin lakhs Zin lakhs
P i 215.66 215.66
(250.00) {0.28) (18.65) (2566.93)
- - 215,66 21566
- - (40.77) (40.77)
(250.00) {0.28) 156.24 (94.04)
{250.00) (0.25) 156.24 (94.04)
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Notes ta the Financial Statements:

3. Other Infarmations:

Particulars Real Estate Securities Unallogated Total

Tin lakhs Tin lakhs Tin lakhs Zin lakhs
Taotal Assels 1,337.12 1,468 29 2,352.08 5157.47
Tatal !_iabilities - - 3 B16.84 3,818 B4

29. Fair Value Measurements
A) The following table shows the carrying amount and fair values of financial assets and financial liabilities including their levels in
the fair value hierarchy.

Ca rrylng Armeunt Fair Vaius
[ EvTeL FVTOCI | Amorlised Cost Tatal Leval 1 Lovelz | Lewval3 Total
1. |Finanolal Assats and Liabillties as at
March 31, 2021
=, |Hen-Sument Flnanclal Assets
|__[imestment in Equity Shares- Ouctad - 041 - .41 041 0.41
| linvestment in Equity Shares- Unquetod 1.51 Sum.25 - 310.75 310.76 T 310,76
Inwvestmenl in Prefererce Shares- LirgJol = 13.08 = 13.00 - 18,00 13.09
I s tment In Plrlrmls'liE Frns 1.00 = = 1,00 = i.00 .00
| |Loans - - 052 0.52 - 0.82 52
| |Other Financial Assats 2 R - 612 8,12 23 a.12 12
|b. |Current Finaneial Asssls Rty e 1
| _|caeh and Cash equivaients - - 35 05 35.05 3505 8505
| |Losns = - 2.276 b6 2,276,958 2,276, 06 2 275 U |
_|Other Financlal Asseis - = - - - -
| |retar 2.51 322,78 231888 7,643.52 = 31118 | _2332.74 2,643,892
@, [Current Finanslal Liskilities = - T
Earenini L3 - - 3,7¢6 B0 3,776.50 5,776 50
| [Other Financial Laoiiy £ = - 567 567 E.E7F
Tatal - - 373217 3,782 17 - - 3, TE2 A7
2. [Financial Assats and Liabilities as af
o
#. |[Won-Curmrent Financial Assots
investment in Equity Shares- Quelad - FEL] =T A 0.41 DAl | 0.1 .83
investmant in Equity Shares Unquelcd 1.51 209,26 E 210, /5 — @i07e| 31076 | 521.53
[ + tin = =i Lo - 13.¢c8 = 13.02 | | 13.C8 13,00 |
Investment in nership I rms 100 - - 185 o €0 .00
| lieans - - 052 0.57 [ 057 57
| [Other Financlel Assweis 5 1968 19.62 19,62 hE1N-F
b, |Currant Financial Asseis = -
Gash and Canh souivalsats - 25.95 28,95 28.G5 28,95
|__|Leans - 2,500 80 250080 | 1 500,60 2,500.90
[_|Other Financlal Accals - 5,202 09 5,302,989 | 5,002 86 | 5,302 89
|_|Total .51 T,8E62.08 B,17H.286 1TB.26 B ABD.43
lo. [Current Finanelal Liabilities ; S ——y e
Eomowings - - s 0f 384.07 304.07
Olher Financlal Liasiiy 2 - 9162, 67 o 16281 A & 5,162 61
Total = = 9,648.68 9,546,885 = : = B,648.68 & E46.68

B} Measurement of Fair Value
The following methods and assumpticns were used to estimate the fair values;

a) The carrying amount of veposits, other receivables, cash and cash equivalent including current bank balances and olher
liabilities are congidered 1o be the same as their fair values, due to current &nd sherl term nature of such balances,

b) Financial instruments with fixed and variable interest rales are evaluated by the company based on parameters such as interest
rates and individual cred t warthiness of the counterparly. Based on this evaluation allowances if required. are taken o account
for expected losses of these receivables.

¢) The fair value of investmant in equity shares other than subsidiaries were calculated based on cash flow discounied using the
current lending rate. They are classified as Level-3 fair values in the fair value hierarchy due to inclusion of uncbservable Inputs.

d) In ungquoted equity instruments where most recent information is not available, or where a wide range of possible fair value
measurements are presen:, cost has been considerad o ba the fair value,

C) Fair Value Hierarchy
The fair value of finarcia instiuments as referred to above heve been classified into three categories depending on the inputs
used in the valuation technique. The hierarchy gives the highest priority te quoted prices in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (Level-1 measuraments) and lcwest priority to uncbservable inputs ( Level-3 measuremants).
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Level 1 : Leve! 1 higrarchy incluces financial Instruments using quoted orices. These include listad equity instrumerts and
mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in stock exchanges are valued
using the closing prices as at the reporting pericd.

Level 2 Inputs other than the quoted prices included within ‘eval 1 that are ohservable for the asset or liability, either directly
or indirectly; and

Level 3 : If one or more of the significant inpuls is not based on observable market data, the instrument is included in Level 3.
This is the case for unlisted equity securities included in Level 3.

30. Capital Managemnent
The primary cbjective of the Company's capital managemant is to ensure that it maintaing an efficient capital structure and
maximize shareholder value. The company manages its capital structure and makes adjustments in the light of changes in
ecanomic conditions, annual aperating plans and lang term and other strateqgic investrent plans. In ordar to maintain or adjust
the capilal structure, the company may adjust the amgunt of dividends paid 1o shareholders or issue new shares. No changes
were mace in the chjeclives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 31,
2020. '

The Company monitors caplial using a ratio of 'adjustec net debt' to 'squity’. Fer this purpose, adjusted net debt is defined as
total liabilities, comprising interest-bearing loans and korrowings less cash and bank balances. Equity comprises of equity
including share premium and all other equity reserves atlributable to the equity share holders,

The company's adjusted net debt to equity ratio is as fcllows

Particulars 31-Mar-2021 31-Mar-2020
Tin lakhs Tin lakhs
Borrowings - Gurrent and Non Current ' ' 3,776.50 384,07
Less: Cash end Cash Equivalents 35.05 26,94
Adjusted net debt | 3,741.45 355.13
Total Equity ‘ [ 1,340.82 1,434.86

Caplta! Gearing Ratio . £ S 2.73 0.25

31. Financial Risk Management . :

The process of identification and evaluation of various risks inherent in the business environment and the operations of the
company and initiation of appropriate measures for pravention andior mitigation of the same are dealt with by the concerned
operational heads uncer the cverall supervisicn of the Chief Operating decision maker of the company. The Audit Committes
periodically reviews the adequacy and efficacy of the averall risk management system. The' Company's financial risk
management is an integral part of how to plan and execute its business sirategies, The Company hag in place adequate Internal
Financial Conirols with reference to firancial statements and such internal financial controls are cperating effectively. Your
company has adopted policies and procedures for ensuring the orderly anc efficient conduct of its business, Including adherence
to the Company's policies, the safeguarding of Its assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy and
completeness of accounting records and timely preparation of reliakle financial statements.

The Company has exposurs to the fcllowing risks arising from financial instruments:
a) Credit Risk
b) Liquidity Risk
£} Market Risk

A. Gredit risk i
Credit risk is the risk of linancial loss to the company i a cuslomer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to meet its
contractual obligations, and erises principally from the Company's trede enc other receivables, The carrying amoaunis of financial
assels represent the maximum credit risk exposure.

1) Trade and other raceivables
As the company doss not have any trade receivables for the balance sheet pariod, thus expected profit /loss has not been
recognised.

ii} The Company held cash and cash equivalents and other pank balances of ¥ 35.05 Lakhs as al March 31, 2021, (T 28.94
Lakhs as at March 31, 2020). The same are held with banks with good cred:t rating.

B. Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Ccmpany will encounter difficulty in meating the obligetions associated with its financial liabilities
that are seltled by delivering cash or another financial asset, The Company's aporoach to manage liuidity is to ensure, as far as
possible, that it will have sufficient liquidity to mest its liabilities as and when they are due, beth under normal and stressful
conditions.

The following are the remaining contractua maturitles of financlal llabliities as at the reporting date, The amounts are gross and
undiscounted,
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1 year or less 1-2 years More than Total
2 years
T in lakhs Zin lakhs 2 in lakhs 2in lakhs

a) Contractual maturities of financial

liabilities as on 31st March, 2021

Short tarm borrowings 377650 - - 3,776.50
b) Contractual maturities of financial

liabilities as on 31st March, 2020

Short term borrowings 384.07 - - 384.07

C. Market risk
Market risk is the rsk that the fair valus of future cash flows of a financial assets will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. The abjective of ma-ket risk management is to manage and control risk exposure within acceptable parameters.

D. Interest Rate Risk and Sensitivity
The Company's exposura o the risk of changas in market interest rates relates primarily to the long term debi obligations with
Flealing or Fixed rete of interest.

31-Mar-21 31-Mar-20
Variakle rate of Borrowing - -
Fixed rale of Eorrowing 3776.50 354,07
32. Previcus years' figures have been re-grouped / ra-arranged wharaver necessary,
33. Flgures have been rounded off to Incian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs to 2 places of decimals.
As per our report of even date attached,
For Agrawal Tondon & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directars
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 329088E
Sdi-
Sd/- Mahendra Kumar .Jalan (DIN: 00598710)
(Sanjay Agrawal} Direcior
Fartner
Membership No, 0hEE0Z
Place: Kolkata Sd/-

Harikeshwar Sah (DIN : 00214758)
Dated: 31st August 2021 Director
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Independent Auditor’s Report

To the Members of MKJ Developers Limited

Report on the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements
Opinion

We have audited the accompanying consolidated Ind AS Financial Statements of MEKJ
Developers Limited (hereinafter referred to as “the Holding Company”) and its associate
comprising of the consaclidated Balance Sheet as at 318t March 2021, the consolidated
statement of profit and loss (including other comprehensive income), the consolidated
statement of cash flows and the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year
then ended and notes to the consolidated financial statements including a summary of
the significant accounting policies and other explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, and based on the consideration of reports of other auditors on separate financial
statements and on the other information of the associates, the aforesaid consolidated
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)
in the manner so required and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting
principles generally accepted in India including India Accounting Standards (“Ind AS”), of
the consolidated state of affairs of the Holding Company and its associate as at March
31 2021, their consolidated loss (including other comprehensive income), consolidated
changes in equity and their consolidated cash flows for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs) specified
under section 143(10) of the Act. QOur responsibilities under those SAs are further
described in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report. We are independent of the Holding Company and its
associate in accordance with the Code of Ethics issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with the provisions of the Act. We believe that the audit evidence obtained by us along
with the consideration of audit reports of the other auditors referred to in the “Other
Matters” paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion
on the consolidated financial statements

Management’s Responsibility for the Consolidated Financial Statements

The Holding Company’s Board of Directors is responsible for the preparation of these
consaolidated financial statements in terms of the requirements of the Companies Act,
2013 (hereinafter referred to as “the Act”) that give a true and fair view of the consolidated
financial position, consolidated financial performance (including other comprehensive
income), consoclidated cash flows and consolidated changes in equity of the Holding
Company including its associate in accordance with the accounting principles generally
accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133
of the Act read with relevant Rules issued there under.

The respective Board of Directors of the Companies are responsible for maintenance of
adequate accounting records in accordance with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding
of the assets of the Holding Company and of its associate and for preventing and
detecting frauds and other irregularities; the selection and application of appropriate
accounting policies; making judgments and estimates that are reasonable and prudent;
and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial controls,
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that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the
accounting records, relevant to the preparation of the consolidated financial statements
that give a true and fair view and are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, which have been used for the purpose of preparation of the consolidated
financial statements by the Directors of the Holding Company, as aforesaid.

Auditor’s Responsibility for the Audit of Consolidated Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. Reasonable
assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in
accordance with SAs will always detect a material misstatement when it exists.
Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are considered material if, individually or
in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of
users taken on the basis of these consolidated financial statements. As part of an audit in
accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgement and maintain professional
skepticism throughout the audit. We also:

¢ Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consclidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

» Obtain an understanding of internal financial control relevant to the audit in order
to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances. Under
Section 143(3)(i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our opinion on
whether the Parent has adequate internal financial controls system in place and
the operating effectiveness of such controls.

* Hvaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the Board of Directors.

» Conclude on the appropriateness of Board of Directors” use of the going concern
basis of accounting in preparation of the consolidated financial statements and,
based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists
related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt on the
appropriateness of this assumption. If we conclude that a material uncertainty
exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related
disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if such disclosures are
inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit
evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or
conditions may cause the Holding Company and its associate to cease ta continue
as a going concern.

¢ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

e Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information of
such entities or business activities within the Holding Company and its associate
to express an opinion on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible
for the direction, supervision and performance of the audit of the - financial
information of such entities included in the consolidated financial statements of
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which we are the independent auditors. For the other entities included in the
consolidated financial statements, which have been audited by the other auditors,
such other auditors remain responsible for the direction, supervision and
performance of the audits carried out by them. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the consolidated financial statements
that, individually or in aggregate, makes it probable that the economic decisions of a
reasonably knowledgeable user of the consolidated financial statements may be
influenced, We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in planning the
scope of our audit work and in evaluating the results of our work; and to evaluate the
effect of any identified misstatements in the consolidated financial statements.

We communicate with those charged with governance of the Parent and such other
entities included in the consolidated financial statements of which we are the
independent auditors regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied
with relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on our
independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

We describe these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes
public disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we
determine that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public interest
benefits of such communication

Other Matters

The consolidated financial statements also includes the Holding Company’s share of net
profit of Rs 0.22 lakhs for the year ended 31st March, 2021, and the same has been
considered while preparing these Consolidated Financial Statements, in respect of an
associate whose financial statements has been audited by other auditor whose report has
been furnished to us by the Management and our opinion on the consolidated financial
statements, in so far as it relates to the amounts and disclosures included in respect of
this associate, and our report in terms of sub-section (3) and (11) of Section 143 of the
Act, in so far as it relates to the aforesaid associate, is based solely on the reports of other
auditor.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements, and our report on Other Legal and
Regulatory Requirements below, is not modified in respect of the above matters with
respect to our reliance on the work done and the reports of the other auditors and the
financial statements/financial information certified by the Management.
Our conclusion is not modified in respect of this matter.
Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements
1. As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report, to the extent applicable, that:
(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to

the best of our knowledge and belief were necessary for the purposes of our
audit of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements;
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(b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law relating to

preparation of the aforesaid consolidated financial statements have been kept
so far as it appears from our examination of those books and the reports of
the other auditor.

(c) The Consolidated Balance Sheet, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and
Loss, the Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity and the Consolidated
Cash flow statement dealt with by this Report are in agreement with the
relevant books of account maintained for the purpose of preparation of the
consolidated financial statements.

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid consolidated financial statements comply with
the Indian Accounting Standards specified under Section 133 of the Act, read
with relevant Rules issued there under.

(e) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors of the
Holding Company as on 31st March 2021 taken on record by the Board of
Directors of the Holding Company and the report of the statutory auditors of
its associate, none of the Directors of the Holding Company and its associate
is disqualified as on 31st March 2021 from being appointed as a Director of
that Company in terms of Section 164(2) of the Act.

() With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of the Holding Company and its associate and the operating
effectiveness of such controls, refer to our separate report in “Annexure A”
which is based on the auditors’ reports of the Holding Company and its
associate, Qur report expresses an unmodified opinion on the adequacy and
operating effectiveness of internal financial controls over financial reporting of
those companies.;

(g) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in
accordance with Rule 11 of the Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014,
in our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the
explanations given to us:

i) The Company has disclosed the impact of pending litigations on its
financial position in its financial statement.

ii) The Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative
contracts for which there were any material foreseeable losses.

iii) There were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the
Investor Education and Protection Fund by the Company.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CQO.
Chartered Accountants
Firm’s Registration No. 329088E

Sanjay Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 056902

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 31st August, 2021

UDIN: 21056902AAAAAD4165
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Annexure - A to the Independent Auditor’s Report

(Referred to in paragraph 1(f) under Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements’
section of our report of even date)

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of
Section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act”)

Opinion

In conjunction with our audit of the consolidated financial statements as of and for the
year ended 31st March 2021, we have audited the internal financial controls over financial
reporting of MKJ Developers Limited (“the Holding Company”) and its associate as of
that date.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given
to us, the Holding Company and its associate, have, in all material respects, an adequate
internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2021, based on
the internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Holding Company
considering the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note on
Audit of Internal Financial Control Over Financial Reporting issued by Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India (the “Guidance Note”).

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Respective Board of Directors of the Holding Company and its associate are
responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering
the essential components of internal control stated in the Guidance Note. These
responsibilities include the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal
financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and efficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its
assets, the prevention and detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness
of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of reliable financial information, as
required under the Act.

Auditor’s Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls
over financial reporting based on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with
the Guidance Note and the Standards on Auditing, issued by Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India and prescribed under section 143(10) of the Act, to the extent
applicable to an audit of internal financial control over financial reporting. Those
Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate
internal financial controls over financial reporting was established and maintained and if
such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Qur audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of
the internal financial controls system over financial reporting and their operating
effectiveness. Our audit of internal financial controls over financial reporting included
obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
assessing the risk that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design
and operating effectiveness of internal control based on the assessed risk. The procedures
selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the risks of
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material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements, whether due to fraud or
EeITor.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained and the audit evidence obtained by
other auditors of the associate company in terms of their report referred to in Other
Matters paragraph below, is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting.

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

A Company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to
provide reasonable assurance regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the
preparation of the consolidated financial statements for external purposes in accordance
with generally accepted accounting principles. A Company's internal financial control over
financial reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the
maintenance of records that, in reasonable detail, accurately and fairly reflect the
transactions and dispositions of the assets of the Company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of the
consolidated financial statements in accordance with generally accepted accounting
principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the Company are being made only in
accordance with authorizations of management and Directors of the Company; and (3)
provide reasonable assurance regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorized
acquisition, use, or disposition of the Company's assets that could have a material effect
on the consolidated financial statements.

Inherent Limitations of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting,
including the possibility of collusion or improper management override of controls,
material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not be detected. Also,
projections of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial
reporting may become inadequate because of changes in conditions, or that the degree of
compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Other Matters

Our aforesaid report under Section 143(3)(i) of the Act on the adequacy and operating
effectiveness of the internal financial controls over financial reporting in so far as it
relates to one associate company is based on the corresponding report of auditors of such
Company.

For AGRAWAL TONDON & CO,
Chartered Accountants
Firm's Registration No. 329088E

Sanjay Agrawal
Partner
Membership No. 056902

Place: Kolkata
Dated: 31st August, 2021

UDIN: 21056902AAAAAD4165



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

(CIN: L45209WB1983PLC035740)

Consolidated Balance Sheet as at 31st March, 2021

. ASSETS

1. NON-CURRENT ASSETS
a) Financial Assets
i} Investments
iy Loans
{iYOther Financial Assets

k) Other Mon-Current Assels
TOTAL NON-CURRENT ASEETS

2. CURRENT ASSETS

g) Inventories
b) Financial Assets

i} Cash & Cash Equivalerts

1) Loans

iy Other Financlal Assets
¢} Other Current Assats
d) Current Tax Assels (Net)

TOTAL CURRENT ASSETS

TOTAL ASSETS

. EQUITY & LIABILITIES

1. EQUITY
a) Equity Share Capital
b) Other Equity
TOTAL EQUITY

2. LIABILITIES
Nan-Currant Liabilties
g) Deferred Tax Libilities (Na2)
TOTAL NON-CURRENT LIABILITIES

Current Liabilities
g) Financigl Liabilities
i} Berrewings
ii) Other Financial Liabilities
k) Other Current Liabilities
TOTAL CURRENT LIABILITIES

TOTAL EQUITY & LIABILITIES

Significant Accounting Pelicies and Motes
forming part of the Consolidated Financial

Tin Lakhs
Nole As at As at
No. 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
2 330.61 330,38
3 0.52 0.52
o4 6.12 18.82
5 2.50 2.50
338.75 353.02
8 248015 2,721.87
4 35,05 28.95
8 227695 2,500.80
9 - 5,302.99
10 0.48 11.42
11 30.43 08.92
4,823.07 10,665.05
5,162.82 115018.{]7
12 250,49 280,49
13 1,095.68 1,168.50
1,3468.17 1,439.95
14 3125 31.25
31.25 31.25
15 3776880 3B4.07
16 EEB7 g,162.61
17 323 0.14
3,785.40 9 .546.63
5,162.82 115013.0'.’
1-32

The accompanying notes form an inlegral part of the consalidated financial statements

As per our report of even date at:ached.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 329088E

Sdj-

(Sanjay Agrawal)
Partner

Membership No. 056302

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 31st August, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sd/-
Mahendra Kumar Jalan (DIN: 00598710)
Director

Sdf-
Harikeshwar Sah (DIN : 00214759)
Director



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

(CIN: L45208Wi1983PLCC35740)

=

Vi,

Vil

Xl

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the year ended 31si March, 2021

vin Lakhs
Note For the year ended For the year ended
No. 31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
INCOME:
. Revenue from Operations - 3.00
. Other Inccme 18 21566 217.54
Total Revenue 215£t‘i__ — 220.54
. EXPENDITURE: )
Changes of Inventories 19 241.72 72.66
Employee Benefit Expenses S0 1.66 1.58
Development Expenzes 21 8.28 14.31
Finance Cost 22 40,77 .
Other Expenses 23 17.28 431.23
Total Expenses 309,69 519.78
. Profit/(Loss) before tax and Profit or Loss of Associates (94.03) (299.24)
, Profit or Loss of Associates 0.22 0.60_
Profit/(Loss) before tax (93.81) (298.64)
Tax Expenses
- Current tax - 31.00
Less: MAT Credit Entitlerment = _{0.1 5)
: - 30.85
- Deferred 1ax - - (870.13) (838.28)
Profit / (Loss) afier tax 593.81l 540.64
. Other Comprehensive Income not to be reclassified
to profit or loss in subsequent periods
Fair Value of Equity Instruments - -
Tax cn items that will not be reclassified to Profit & Less - =
Other Comprehensive Income for the year -
Total Comprehensive Income for tha year (93.81) 540.64
Earnings per Equity Share: 25
(1) Baslc (3.75) 21.58
(2) Diluted (3.75) 21.58

Significant Accounting Policlas and Notes forming part of 1-32

the consolidated Financial Statemants

The accompanying notes form an integral pari of the consclidated financial statements

As per our report of even date attached.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co. .
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No, 329088E

Sd/-

(Sanjay Agrawal}
Partner
Membership No. 056902

Place: Kolkata

Dated: 31st August, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sdi-

Mahendra Kumar Jalan (DIN: 00598710)

Director

Sd/-

Harikeshwar Sah (DIN : 00214758)

Director



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

(CIN: 45209WB1983PLC035740)

Consolidated Statement of Changes in Equity for the year ended 31st March, 2021

A) Equity Share Capital Tln Lakhs
Particulars Nas. Amaunt
As at 01st April 2019 25,04,929 250.49
Changes during the year - -
As at 31st March,2020 25,04 929 250.49
Changes during the year - =
As at 31st March,2021 25,04,929 250.49
B) Other Equity
Reserve & Surplus Items of OCI
- : Equity
Particulars Securities General Retained Total
Premium Reserves Earnings Hstriihisnts
g through OCI
Amount Amount Amount Amount Amount
Balance as at 01st April, 2019 625.00 464.53 2,767.36 (2,757.96) 1,098.93
Profit for the year - - 540.64 “ 540.64
Other Comprehensive Income for the year > - - (450.07) (450.07)
Balance as at 31st March, 2020 625.00 464.53 3,308.00 (2,208.03) 1,189.50
Profit for the year - - (93.81) - (83.81)
Other Comprehensive Income for the year - - - - -
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 625.00 464.53 3,214.19 (3,208.03) 1,095.69

As per our report of even date attached.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 329088E

Sd/l-

{Sanjay Agrawal)
Partner

Membership No. 056902

Placa: Kolkata

Dated: 31st August, 2021

For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Sdi-

Mahendra Kumar Jalan (DIN: 00598710)

Director

8d/-

Harikeshwar Sah (DIN : 00214759)

Director




MKJ DEVELOPERS. LIMITED

{CIN: 1,45209WWB1853PLLL35740)

A. Cash flow from Operating Activities:

— #1stiarch, 2021

Censolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31st March, 2021

€in Lakhs

d1s1 March, 2020

Net Profit before Tax and Exceptional items: {94.03) (298.64)
a) Interest Received (216 56) (217.54)
b) Fair Value Ad) on Sale of Investments — (215.68] (450.07) (667 61)
Oporating Profit before Working Capital changes (309.53) (966.25)
Adjustments for ;- :
a) Invantories 24172 72.66
by Hen-Cument Assets - Loans - -t
t) Nen-Cumrent Financial Assels 13.50 5
d) Other Nor-Current Assets = -
) Current Firancial Assels - Loars 223,84 193.89
f) Other Cument Finarcial Assets Ha02.99 1,656.41
) Qlher Current Assets 0,94 (@81
hy Other Financial liabilities (9,156.94) (2,433 82)
iy Other Current Liabilities . __ 309 P I (114
Working Capital Changes —— . 13,360.77) Fi {519.78)
Cash generated from oporstlons (3,670.45) (1,486.03)
Direct Taxes Paid £8.47 . TOAG
Net Cash Flow from Operating Activitios (3,601.99) (1.561.49)
B. Cash Flow from Investing Activities:
&) Sales of investmenls - 1,420.76
b} Purchase of investments P 5 :
Net Cash Flow from Investing Aclivities - 1,220.76
C. Cash Flow from Financing Activiles:
a) Shortterm Borrowings 3,292 43 &
b) Interest Received 215.65 217.54
Net Cash Flow from Financing Activities 3,608.00 217.54
Net Inflow / (Oulflow) (A + B+ C) X1 —_ (Ia3.19)
0, Net changes in Gash and Cash Equivalents 6.10 (123.19)
&) Cash and Cash Equivalent - at commeancement 28.95 152.14
b) Cash and Cash Equivalent - at close 35.05 20,95
Naotes:
. The abovo Cash Flow Statement has been prepared under the “Indireet Methad” as set out in the Indian Accounting Standard (Ind-AS -7) - Cash
Flow Stalement. -
b.|Paticulars As at31.03.2021 As ai 31.03.2020
Cash & Cash Equivalenis comprises of:
Cash on Hand 0.2z 0.20
Balances wilh Bariks:
- in Currant Accounts 34,82 23,75
Cheques, dreftinhend 1 i 2]
Cash & Cash Equivaients in Cash Flow Statemant 35.05 -25.95
& : fis at Non-Cash As al
gl 3032029 | Ccashflows Changes 31.03.2021
Borrowings - Current 384.07 3,582 43 - 3,776.50

As per our report of even date atleched.

For Agrawal Tondon & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration No. 3200B8E

Sdj-

(Sanjay Agrawal)
Partner

Membership No. 056902

Place: Kolkala

Dated: 31st August, 2021

For and.on behalf of the Board of Directors

5d/-

Mahendra Kumar Jalan (DIN: 00598710)

Director

Sd/-

Harikeshwar Sah (DIM : 00214758)

Director



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

Notes to the _Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the 'vear ended March 31%, 2021

1{A) Corporate Information

The Consolidated Financial Statements of MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED are prepared in accordance with
Accounting Standard (AS)-23 on Accounting for Investment in Associates in Consolidated Financial Staterncnts
issued by The Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. The Consolidated Financial Statements comprise the
financial Statement of the associate company ldeal oint Services Pvt, Ltd.

The Company is primarily engaged in the Real Estate Development Business. The registered office of the Company
is located at Sagar Estate, 3™ Floor, 2, Clive Ghat Street, Kolkata — 700 001,

1(B) Basis of Preparation of Financial Statements

a)

b)

Impact on outbreak of COVID-19

Due to the outbreak of Coronavirus Discase (COVID-19), the Government of India declared lock-down effective
25" March, 2020 and in compliance of the instructions issued by the Central and State Governments, the
operations of the Company had (v be suspended. This impacted the normal husiness operations of the company
during the lock-down period.

The Company has considered the possible impacts on the carrying value of assets and contractual terms with
custamers and vendors. The Company, as at the date of these financial resulls has used the available information
to assess the impact on the [uture performance of the Company. Based on the information, the Company has
made assessments and expects that the carrying amounts of assets reported in these financials as at 315 March,
2020 are fully recoverable. ;

The Company has also estimated the future cash flows wilh the possible cffects that may result from the
COVID-19 pandemic and does not foresee overall adverse impact on realising ils assets and meeting its
liabilities as and when they fall due. The actual impact of COVID-19 pandemic may vary from that estimated as
at the date of approval of these financial results,

The Central and State Governments have since significantly relaxed the lock-down restrictions. The Company
has resumed its operations though not at full scale. The Company will continue to closely observe the evolving
scenario and take into account any future developmunts arising out of the same.

Basis of Consolidation

The consolidated financial statements comprise the financial statements of the Company and its subsidiaries as
at 31 March 2020. Control is achieved when the Group is exposed, or has rights, to variable returns from its
involvement with the investee and has the ability to affect those returns through its power over the investee.
Specifically, the Company coutrols an investee if and only if the Company has:

a. Power aver the investes (ie. existing rights that give it the current ability to dircct the relevant

activities of the investee)
b. Exposure, or rights, to variable returns [rom its involvement with the investee, and
c. The ability to use its power over the investee to alfect its retumns.

The Company re-assesses whether or not it controls an investee if facts and circumstances indicate that there are
changes to one or more of the three elements of control. Consolidation of a subsidiary begins when the Company
oblains control over the subsidiary and ceases when the Company loses control of the subsidiary.

Cansolidated financial statements ere prepared using uniform accounting policics for like transactions and other
events in similar circumstances. If a member of the group uses accounting policies other than those adopted in
the consalidated financial statements for like transactions and cvents in similar circumstances, appropriate
adjustments ar¢ madc to thal group memhber’s financial statements in preparing the consolidated financial
statements to ensure conformity with the Company’s accounting policies.

The financial statements of all entities used for the purpose of consolidation arc drawn up to same reporting date
as that of the parent Company, i.e., year ended on 31 March. When the end of the reporting period of the parent
is different from that of a subsidiary, the subsidiary prepares, for consolidation purposes, additional financial
information as of the same dale as the financial statements of the parent to enable the parent to consolidate the
financial information of the subsidiary.

In term of Ind AS 110- “Consolidated Financial Statements™, the financial statements of the Company and its
subsidiaries are combined on a ling- by- line basis by adding together the book/ fair value of like iters like



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the vear ended March 31%, 2021

c)

2.1

2.2

assets, liabilities, income and expenditure, after fully eliminating intra group balances, intra group transactions
and any unrealized Profit/ Loss included therein. Profit or loss and cach component of other comprehensive
income (OCT) are attributed to the equity holders of the parent of the Group and to the non-conirolling interests,
even if this results in the non-controlling interasts having a deficit balance.

The difference of the cost of the Group of its [nvastment in Subsidiaries over its proportionate share in the equity
of the respective investee companies as at the date of acquisition of st.%l\t. is recognised in the Financial
Statement as Goodwill or Capital Reserve, as the case may he.

A change in the ownership interest of a subsidiary, without a loss of contral, is accounted for as an equity
transacion. If the Group loses control overa sussidiary, it:
+  Derceognises the assets (including goodwilf) and liabilities of the subsidiary
*  Derecognises the carrying amount ol any non-controlling interests
*+  Derecognises the cumulative translation differences recorded in cquity
» Recognises the fair value of the consideration received
¢ Recognises the fair value of any investment retained
¢ Recognises any surplus or deficit in profit or loss
= Reclassifics the parent’s share of components previously recognised in OCI to pmft or [oss or rela.ned
earnings, as appropriate, as would he required if the Group had directly disposed of the related assets or
liabilities.

Historical Cost Convention

The financial statements have bsen prepared on going concern basis in accordance with the ac'countmg
principles generally accepted in India. Further, the financzial statements have been prepared on historical cost
basis, except lor certain asscts and liabilities which have been measured at fair values as sxplained in relevant
accounting principles.

Accounting policies have been consistently applied except where a newly issued accounting standard is initially
adopted or a revision to an existing accounting standard requires & charge in theaccounting policy hitherto in
use.

Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Operating Cycle
All assets and liabilities have been classified as current or non-current as per the Group’s normal aperating
cycle and ather criteria set out in the Schedule 111 to the Companies Act, 2013,

Foreign Currencies ,
Items included in the financial statements of the Group are measured using the currency of the primary
economic environment in which the Groupoperates (‘the functional currency'). The financial statcments arc
presented in Indian Rupee (INR), which is the Group's functional and presentation currency.

Transactions in foreign currencies are initially recorded in by the Group at spot rates al the functional currency
spot rate (i.e. INR) at the date the transaction first qualifies for recognition. Monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are translaced at the functional currency spot rates of exchange at the
reporting date.

Foreign exchange gains and losses resulting from the settlement of lransactions in foreign currencies and from
the translation of monctary assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currencies at year end exchange rates
arc generally recognised in the Statement of Profit & Loss.

Non-manetary items that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are translated using the
exchange rates at the dates of the initial transactions. Non-monctary items that are measured at fair value in a
foreign currency are translated using the exchange rates at the date when the fair value was determined. The gain
or loss ¢ ‘msmg on translation of non-monetary items measured at fair valuc is treated in line with the recognition
of the gain or loss on the change in fair vulun.. ol the item (1.c., translation differences on items whose fair value
gain or loss is recognised in OCI or profit or loss are also recognisad in OCI or profit or loss, respectively).



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at and for the year ended March 315, 2021

2.3

2.4

2.5

2.6

Fair Value Measurement
Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
transaction between market participants at the measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the
presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place either:

a) In the principal market for the assct or Lability, or

b) In the absence of a principal market, in the maost advantageous market for the asset or liahility

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Group.,

The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market participants would use
when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best economic interest.

A fair value measurement of & non-financial asset takes into account a market participant’s ability to generate
economic benefits by using the asset in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that
would use the assel in its highes! and best use,

The Group uses valuation techiniques that are appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are
available to measure fair value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs.

All assets and liabilities for which fair value is measured or disclosed in the financial statements are categorised
within the fair valuc hicrarchy, deseribed as follows, based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair
value measurement as a whole:

a) Level 1 — Quoted (unadjusted) market prices in active markets for identical assets or liabilities

b) Level 2 — Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is directly or indirectly observable

c) Level 3 — Valuation lechniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement is unobservable

For assets and liabilities that are recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Group
determines whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing categorisation (based
on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting
period.

For the purpose of fair value disclosures, the Group has determined classes of assets and liabilities on the basis
of the nature, characleristics and risks of the assel or liability and the level of the fair value hierarchy as
explained above.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial stalements in conformity with Ind AS requires the management to make judgmenls,
estimates and assumptions that affect the reported amounts of revenues, expenses, assets and liabilities and the
disclosure of contingent liabilities during and at the end of the reporting period. Although these estimates are
based on the management’s best knowledge of current events and actions, uncertainty about these assumptions
and estimates could result in the nutcomes requiring a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets or
liabilities in future periods.

Cash and Cash Equivalents
Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheel comprise cash al banks and on hand and short-term deposils with
an original maturity of three manths or less, which are subject to an insignificant risk of changes in value.

Property, Plant and Equipment
The Group has elected to adopt the carrying value of Property, Plant and Equipment under the Indian GAAP as
on 1™April2016, as the deemed cost for the purpose of transition to IND AS.

Praperty, plant and CL.uipmt.m and capital work in progress are carried al cost of acquisilion on current cost
basis less accumulated depreciation and accurmulated impairment, il any. Cost comprises purchase price and
directly attributable cost of bringing the asset to its working condition for the intended use.



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statement as at ang for the year ended March 31 st 2021

2.7

2.8

29

2.10

2.11

An item of property, plant and cguipment and any significant part irit:ally recognised is derecognised upon
disposal or when no future economic benefits are expected from its use or disposal. Any gain or loss arising on
de-recognition of the asset (calculated as the difference between the ner disposal proceeds and the carrying
amount of the asset} is included in the income statement when the asset is derecognised.

Depreciation is provided on written dewn value method over the useful lives of property, plant and equipment
as estimated by management. Pursuant to Notification of Schedule IT of the Companies Act, 2013 depreziation
is provided on prorata basis on wrillen down value method at the rates derermined based on estimated useful
lives of property, plant and equipment where applicable. However, leaschold land is depreciated over lease
period on straight line basis.

The residual values, useful lives and methods of Llf;;prc viziion of property. plant and equiprzent are reviewed at
cach financial year end and adjusied prospectively, il appropriate.

Intangible Assets

The Group has elected to adopt the {;'anyi ng value.of Property, Plant and Equipment under the Indian GAAP as
on I* April 2016, as the deemed cost for the purpose of transition to IND AS.

Intangible Assets are recognized only when future economic benefits arising out of the assets flow to the
enterprise and are amortiscd over their useful life of three years. Intangible assets acquired separately arc
measured -on initial recognition at cost. Following initial recognition, intangible usscts arc carried at cost less
accumulated amortization and accumulated impairment fosses, it any. Internally. generated intangible assets,
cxcluding capitalized development costs, are not capitalized and are charged to Statement of Profit and Loss for
the year during which such expuendityre is incurred.

Capital work-in-progress and intangible assers uader development
Capital work-in-progress and intangible assets under development are carried at cost. Cost includes land,
related acquisition expenses, development / constiuction costs, borrowing costs and other direct expenditure.

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Group assesses at each reporting date whether there s an indication that an assel may be impaired. If any
indication exists, the Group estimates the assct’s recoverable amount. An asset’s recoverable amount is the
higher of an asset’s or cash-generating unit’s (CGU) net selling price and ils value in use, The recoverable
amount is determined for an individual asset, unless the asset does not generale cash inflows that are largely
independent of those from other asscts or groups of assets. Where the carrying amount of an asset or CGU
exceeds its recoverable amount, the asset is considered impaired and is written down to its recoverable amount,

In assessing value in use, the estimated future cash flows are discounted to their present value vsing'a pre-tax
discount rate that reflects current market asscssments of the time value of monsy and the risks specific to the
asset. In determining net selling price, recent market ransactions are taken into account, if available, If no such
transactions can be identified, an appropriate valuation model is used.

Inventorics i ;

Raw materials, Construction work-in-progress and {inished goods are stated at the lower of cost and net
realisable value. Cost ofinventories comprise all cost of purchase including cost of land, borrowing cost,
development costs and other cost incurred in bringing them to their present location and condition, The cost, in
general, is determined using weighted average cost method.

Contract cost incurred related to future activity of the contract are recognised as an asset provided it is probable
that theywill be recovered during the contract period. Such costs represent the amount duc from customer and
are often classifiedas Construction work-in-progress.

Net realizable value is the estimated sclling price in the ordinary course of business, less estimated costs of
completion and estimated costs nceessary to make the sale.

Revenue and Other Income
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the ceonomicbenefits will flow to the Group and it can be
reliablymeasured, Revenue is mcasurcd at the fair valuz of theconsideration received/receivable net of rebate
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and taxes. The Group applies the revenue recognition crileria o each pature of revenue transaction as set-out
below:

i} Hevenue from Construction Contracts
Revenue is recognized when it is probable that the economic benefits will flow ta the Group and it can
be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair value of the consideration received/receivable net
of rebate and taxes. The Group applics the revenue recognilion crileria to cach nature of revenue
transaction as set-out below:

Principles of Ind AS 18 in respect of sale of goods for revognising revenue, costs and profits from
transactions of real estate which are in substance similar to delivery of goods when the revenue
recognition process is completed; and

In case of real eslale sales where agreement for sale is executed for under construction properties,
revenue in respect of individual contracts is recognised when performance on the contract is considered
to be completed.

Dividend Income is recognised when the Group's right to receive dividend is established,
All other incomes are recognisad on accraal basis.
2.12  Employvec Benefits
I ﬁeﬁned Contribution Plan

a, Provident Fund
Contributions in respect of all Employees are madeto the Reglonal Provident Fund as per the
provisions of Umployees’ Providert Jund and Miscellancous Provisions Act, 1952 and arc
charged to the Statement of Profil and Loss as and when services are rendered by employees. The
Group has no obligation other than the contribution payable to the Regional Provident fund.

I1. Defined Benefit Plan

a. Gratuity

Gratuity is a post-cmployment benefit and is in the nalure ofe defined benefit plan, The liability
recognized in the balancesheet in respect of pratuity is the present wvalue of the
definedbenefit/obligation at the balance sheet date, together withadjustments for unrecognized
actuarial gains or losses andpast service costs. The defined benefitVobligation is calculatedat or near
the balance sheet date by en independent actuaryusing the projected unit credit method, This is
based on standerd rates of inflation, salary growth rate and mortality. Discount factors are
determined close to each year-end byreference to market yields on povernment bonds that
haveterms to maturity approximating the terms of the relatedliability. Current Service cost and
Interest component on the Group’s delined benelit plan isincluded in employee benefits expense,
Actuarial pains/losses resulting from re-measurements of theliabilily are included in other
comprehensive income.

IIl. Long Term Compensated Abscences

The Group treats accumulated leave to the extent such leave are carried forward as long-term employee
benefit for measurement purposes. Such long-term compensaled absences are provided for based on the
actuarial valuation using the projected unit credit method at the year-end. Current Service cost and
Interest component arising out of such valuation is included in employee benefits expense. Actuarial
pains/losses resulting from re-measurements of the liability are included in other comprehensive
income. The Group presents the leave as a current liability in the balance sheet, to the extent it does not
have an unconditional right to defer its settlement for 12 months after the reporting date. Where Group
has the unconditiona! lcgal and contractual right to defer the settlement for a period beyond 12 months,
the same is presented as non-current liability,
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2.13

Taxes on Income
Tax expense comprises current and deferred tax.

Current income-tax is measured at the amount expected to be paid to the tax authorities in accordance with
the Income-tax Act, 1961 enacted in India and tax laws prevailing in the respeetive tax jurisdiciions where
the Group operates. The tax rates and tax laws used to compute the amount are those Lhat are enacted or
substantively enacted, at the reporting date.

Deferred tax is provided using the liability method, on temporary differcnces arising between the tax bases
of assets and liabilitics and their carrying amounts in the finaucial stalements at the reporting date. Deferred
income tax is not accounted for if it arises from imitial recognition of an asset or Hability in a transacticn
other than a busincss combination that at the time of the transaction a:fects neither accounting prolit nor
taxable profit (tax loss). Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates and laws that have been enacted
or substantially enacted by the end of the reporting period and are cxpected to apply when the related
deferred income tax asset is realised or the deforred income tax Hability i3 scttled. '

Deferred tax assets are recognised for all deductible temporary differences and unused tax losses only if it is
probable that future taxable araounts will be available to utilise those temporary differences and losses.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the extent that
it is no longer probablc that sufficient taxable profit will be available o allow all or part of the deferred tax
asset to be utilised. Unrecognised deferred tax zssets are re-assessed at each reporiing date and are
recognised to the extent that it has become probable that fulure taxable profits will allow the deferred tax
asset to be recovered.

asscts and liabilitics and when the deforred tax balances relate 1o the same taxation enthority, Current tax
assets and tax liabilities are offset where the entity has a legally enforceable right to offset and intends either
to settle on a net basts, or to realise the asset and settle the liahility simultaneously.

Current and deferred tex is recognised in profit or loss, except to the extent that it relates to items recognised
in other comprehensive income or direelly i equity. In tis case, the tax is also recognised in other
campreliensive income or directly in equity, respectively,

Deferred income taxes reflect the impact of timing differences between taxahle income and- accounting
income originating during the current year and reversal of timing differenees for the carlier years, Delerred
tax is measured using the lax rates and the tax laws enacted or substantively enacted at the-reporting date.

2.13.1 Provisions and Contingencies

2,14

A provision is recognized when an enlerprise has o present obligation (legal or constructive) as a result of
past event; it is probable that an outflow of resources embodying economic benefits will be required to settle
the obligation and a reliable estimate can be mede of the amount of the obligation. The expense relating to a
provision is presented in the statement of profit and loss.

Tf the effect of the time value of money is material, provisions are discounted using a current pre-lax rate that

‘reflects, when appropriate, the risks specific to the liability. When discounting is used, the increase in the

provision due to the passage of time is recognised #5 a finance cost,

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events whose existence will be confirmed
by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events beyond the control of the Group
ot a present ahligation that is nat recognized because it is not probable that an outflow of resources will be
required to settle the obligation. The Group does not recognize a contingent liability but discloses its
existence in the financial statcrments.

Borrowing Costs

Borrowing Costs include interest, amortisation of ancillary costs incurred and exchange differences arising
from foreign currency horrawings ta the extent they are regarded as an adjustment to the borrowing costs.
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2.15

2.16

Borrowing Costs, allocated to and utilised for qualifying assets, perlaining to the period from commencement
of activities relating to construction / development of the qualifying asset up to the date the asset is ready for
its intended use is added to the cost of the assels. Capitalisation of Borrowing Costs is suspended and
charged to the Statement of Profit and 1.oss during extended periods when active development activity on the
qualifying asscts is interrupted. All other borrowing costs are expensed in the period they occur.

Earnings per Share

Basic Barnings per Share is caleulated by dividing the net profit or loss for the periad attributable to cquity
shareholders by the weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the period. For the purpose
of caleulating diluted earnings per share, the net profit or loss for the period attributable to equity
shareholders and the weighted avernge number of shares outstanding during the period is adjusted for the
effects of all dilutive potential equity sharas.

The weighted average number of cquity shares outstanding during the period and for all periods presented is
adjusted for events, such as bonus shares, other than the conversion of potential equity shares that have
changed the number of equily shares outstanding, without a corresponding change in resources.

Financial Instruments

A financial instrument is any contract that gives rise to @ financial asset of one entity and a financial liability
or equity instrument of another entity.

A. Financial assets
i, Imitial recognition and measurement
All financial assets are recognised initially at fair value plus, in the case of financial asscts not
recorded at fair value through profit or loss, transaction costs that are attributable to the acquisition
of the financial asset

ii. Subsequent measurcment

For purposes of subsequent measurement, financial assets are classified in two categories:

g, Debt instruments at amortised cost

b. Lquity instruments measured at fair value through other comprehensive income FVTOCI

Debt instruments at amortised cost other than derivative contracts

A ‘debt instrument’ is measured at the amortised cost if both the following conditions are met:

e The asset is hield within a business model whose objective is to hold asscts for collecting
contractual cash flows, and

o  Contractual terms of the asset give rise on specified dates ta cash flows that are solely
payments of principal and interest (SPP'1) on the principal amount outstanding.

Afler initial measurement, such financial assets are subsequently measured at amortised cost using
the effective interest rate (EIR) methad, Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on acquisilion and fzes or costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR
amortisation is included in finance income in the profit or luss, The losses arising from impairment
are recognised in the profit or loss. This category generally applies to trade and ather reccivables.

Equity investments

All equity investments in scope of Ind-AS 109 are measvred at fair valuc other than equity
investments measured at deemed cost on first time adoption of Ind AS. Equity instruments which
are held for trading are classified as at FVTPL. For all other equity instruments, the Group decides
to classify the same either as ar FVTOCI or FVTPL. The Group makes such election on an
instrument-by-instrument basis. The classification is made on initial recognition and is irrevocable.

If the Group decides to classify an equity instrument at FVTOCI, then all fair value changes on the
instrument, excluding dividends, are recognized in the OCIL. There is no recycling of the amounts
from OCI to Statement of Profit and Loss, even an sale of investment. However, the Group may
transfer the cumuletive gain or loss within equity.
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fii.

iv.

Fquity instruments included within the FVTPL category are measured at fair valuc with all changes
recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss,

De-recognition

A financial asset (or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of & Group of similar
financial assets) is primarily derecognised when:

»  The rights ta receive cash flows from the asset have expived, or

= the Group has transferred substentially ull the risks and rewards of the asset

Impairment of financial assets

In accordance with. Ind-AS 109, the Group applies expected credit loss (ECL) model for

measurement and recognition of imparrmert loss on the following *m‘.mlal assets and credit risk

cxposure: :

s Financial assets that are debi insttuments, and are measured at amoms:.d cost c.g., loans, debt
sccuritics, deposits, trade receivables and bank balance

The Group follows ‘simplified approuch’ for recognition of impeirment loss allowance on Trade
receivables,

The application of simplitied approach does not require the Group to track changes in credit risk.
Rather, il recognises impairment loss allowance based on lifetime ECTs at each reporting date, right
from its initial recognition.

Lifetime ECL arc the expected credic losses resulting from all possible default events over the
expected life of a financial instruinent. ECL is the difference between all contractual cash flows that
are due to the Group in accordance wnh the contract and all the cash flows that the cntlty expects o
receive, discounted at the original EIR. When estimating the cash flows, an entity is required to
consider:

¢ All contractual terms of lhe financial instrument (including prepayviment, cxtension, call and
similar options) over the expected life of the financial instrument. However, in rare cases when
the expected life of the financial instrument cannot be estimated reliably, then the entity is
required {o use the remaining contractual term of the financial instrument

Cash flows from the sale of collateral held or other credit enhancements that are integral to the
contractual terms

As a practical expedient, the Group uses a prmision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance
on portfalio of its trade receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically obscrved
default rates over the expected life of the trade receivables and is adjusted for forward- -looking
estimates. At every reporting date, the historical observed default rates are updated ang changes in
the forward-looking cstimates are analyscd.

ECL impairment loss allowence (or reversal) recognized during the period is recognized as income/

expense in the statement of profit and loss (P&L). This amount is reflected under the head ‘other

expenses’ in the P&L. The balance sheet nresentation for various financial instruments is described

belovi:

¢ Financial asscts measured at amortised cost: ECL is presented as an allowance; ic., as an
integral part of the measurement of those assets in the balance sheet. The allowance reduces
the net carrying amount. Until the asse! meets write-off criteria, the group does not reduce
1mpa1rmcnt allowance from the gross car rying amount.

Far assessing increase in credit risk and impairment Inss, the Group combines financial instruments
on the basis of shared credit risk characteristics with the objective of [acilitating an analysis that is
dESlgl’led to enable significant increases in credit risk to be identified on a timely basis.
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B.

Financial liabilities
i, Initial recognition and measurcment
. All financial liabilities are recognised initially at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
and pavables, investment in suhsidiaries and joint ventures, net of directly attributable transaction
costs.

The Group’s financial liabilities include trade and other payables, loans and borrowings including
bank overdrafts, [inancial guarantee contracts and derivative financial instruments.

ii. Subscquent measurement
The measurement of financial liabilitics depends on their classification, as described belaw:

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

Financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss include derivatives, financial liabilities held for
trading and financial liabilities desigrated upon initial recognition as al fair value through profit or loss.
Financial liabilities are classificd as held for trading if they are incurred for the purpose of repurchasing
in the near term. This category also includes derivative financial instruments entered into by the Group
that arc not designated as hedging instruments in hedge relationships as defined by Ind AS 109.
Separated embedded derivatives are also classificd as held for trading unless they are designated as
effective hedging instruments.

Gains or losses on liabilities held for trading are recognised in the profit or loss.

Financial liabilities designated upon initial recognition at fair value through profit or loss are designated
as such at the initial date of recognition, and only if the criteria in Ind AS 109 are satisfied. For
liabilities designated as FVTPL, fair value gains/ losses attributable to changes in own credit risks are
recognized in OCL These gains/ loss are not subsequently transferred to P&L. However, the Group may
transfer the cumulative gain or loss within equity. All other changes in fair valuc of such liability are
recoguised in the statement of profit or lass,

Borrowings

After inilizl recognition, interest-bearing loans and borrowings arc subsequently measured at amortised
cost using the effective interest rate (EIR) methad. Gains and losses are recognised in the statement of
profit or loss when the liabilitics arc derccognised as well as through the EIR amortisation process.

Amortised cast is caleulated by taking into account any discount ar premium on acquisition and fees or
costs that are an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amorlisation is included as finance costs in the
statement of protit and loss.

Trade receivables ;
Trade receivables are recognised initially at fair value and subscquently measured at amortised cost
using the effectiveinterest method, less allowance for doubtful debts.

Trade and other payables

These amounts represent liabilities for goods and services provided to the Groupprior to the end of
financial year, The amounts are generally unsceured. Trade and other payables are presented as current
liabilities unless payment is notdue within the Group’s operating cycle, They are recognised initially at
their fair value and subsequently measured atamortised cost using the effective interest method.

Financial guarantee contracts

Financial guarantee contracts issued by the Group are those contracts that require a payment to be made
to reimburse the lender for a loss it incurs becausc the specified borrower fails to make a payment when
due in accordance with the terms of a loan agreement. Financial guarantee contracts arc rccognised
initially as a liability at fuir value, adjusted for transaction costs that arc dircetly attributable to the
issuance of the guarantee. Subsequently, the liability is measured at the higher of the amount of loss
allowance determincd as per impairment requirements of Ind AS 109 and the amount recognised less
cumulative amorlisation,
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2.17

2.18

De-recognition .

A [inancial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the lizbility is discharged or cancelled or
expires. When an existing financial liabilicy is weplaced by another [rom the sane. lender on
substantially different terms, or the tenns of an existing liability are substantially modificd, such an
cxchange or modification is treated as the de-recognition of the original liability and the recognition of
ancw liability. The difference in the respective carrving amounts is recognised in the statement of profit
and loss.

. Offsetting of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilitics arc offsct and the net amount is reported in the balance sheet if
there is a currently enforceasle legal right to offset the recognised amounts and taere is an intention to
settle on a net basis, (o realise the assets and settle the liabilities simultaneously.

Operating Segments 5 s

The Business process and Risk Management Committee of the Group, approved by the Board of Directors and
Audit Committee performs the function of allotment of resources and assessment of perfennance of the Group.
Considering the level of activities performed, frequency of their meetings and leval of finality of their decisions,
the Group has identified that -Chicl Operating Decision Maker fanction is being performed by the Business
process and Risk Management Comumittee. The financial information presented to the Business process and Risk
Management Committee in the context of results and for the purposes of approvin 2 the annual operating plan is
on a consolidated basis. The Group’s business activity falls within two reportable hisiness segment viz. ‘Real
estate projects development’, and ‘others #s per IND AS - 108,

Rounding off
All amounts disclosed in the financial statements and notes have besn rounded off to the nearest lakhs as per the
requirement of Schedule TT1 to the Act, unless atherwise stated,
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Amount In§ lakhs
2. mvastments (Non-Current):
Particulars Facc 31sl March 2021 3ist March 2020
Value Nos, Amourt Nos Ameount
2
A. Invesiments In Equity Instrumenis;
() Quoted:
(a) Measured at Fair Value through Other Cemprehensive
Income
MKJ Enlerprises Lid. 10.00 159 0.41 168 041
Total (1) 0.41 0.4
| {il] Unquoted:
{a) Measurad sl Cast
Ideal Point Services Fyl. Lic, 10.00 2,0C0 0.20 2,000 0.20
Add, Bhare of Profl [Loss! 5.35 .12
5.55 § ;2
(a) Measured al Fair Value through
Other Comprehensive Income :
Eangal Bonded Warehouse Lid. 12 50 4,885 2502 4,635 2802
Dankuni Projects Li¢ 000 | 428800 77.57 | 428,800 7757
Fdward Kevenier Ful. Lid, 10.00 1,13,000 163.47 | 1,132,000 183 47
Sasmal Infrastruciure Pvb Llg. 10.00 28000 20.19 25,000 2018
| 309,25 309.25
{b) Measured at Fair Valie through
Profit and Loss
Adia Tracome P.Lic. “0.00 1,500 018 1,600 .15
Elpack India Ltd. 10.0C 11,660 0.11 11,860 0.1
Krishra Fuluretrace = Ltd. oc 1,500 0.18 1,500 0.15
Navotech Exim 2.Ltd 10.00 ,500 018 4,500 D15
Nirmalkunj Tracer 1.0 Td io.cl 4,500 018 1,800 0.8
Rajesh Cealrade P 1d 10,00 1,500 Q.18 1.5C0 015
Shew Merchardise 2. _id. 1.c0 1,800 0.15 1,500 a1s
Shivamani Cistrbutors 2. Lid 10.00 1,600 .15 1,800 018
Shyemal Doalrade P. Lid. 1.00 1,8C0 0.15 1,500 0.15
131 1.31
Tetal (i) 316.11 ﬂﬁii
Total (A= (i=il} 316, e 15,28
{B. Investment in Preference Instruments:
Unguoted:
Weasured at Fair Value through
Othar Comprehonsive Income
Edward Keventor Py Ltd. “a0.0n 13,010 “3 13,010 13.08
Total (B) YT 1309
€. Investments in Partmarship Firms:
Satyam Coasinoctions - 1.00 - 1.60
Total {G) 1.00 1,00
Total (A+B+C) 330,61 330.38
Aggregeta marke: valuz of ouoted investimants c.41 041
Aggregate amount of urguoted irvestments 330.20 326,97
Aggregate ameunt of magaiiment in valve of Invesiment - =
330,61 330.38
4. Loans
As at As at
318t March, 2021 _31st March, 2020
Considered good, Jisecwred
Security Deposits D82 0.52
.52 0.52
4. Other Financlal Asseats
As at As st
31st March, 2021 _31st March, 2020
Advanzes 8.12 19.62
6,12 19.62_
5, Othar Non-Current Asspts
As al Asat
st Mareh, 2021 318t March, 2020,
Advances 2.50 250
—d:20 —_—i
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Amount in¥ Lakhs
6. Inventories:
Face _d1st March 2021 ] 31st March 2020
Petleaies Value Hos. 7 Nos. 3
F T
A, Development Work in Progress
Land 315.38 315.38
Development Expense 1,020.73 1,012.45
Total (A) 1,336.12 1!:!27.3-1
B. Securilies
Equity Instrumenis:
a) Quoted: ; %
Madanlal Ltd. H.0D | 10,0C,600 - 10,200,000 250.00
MKJ Enterprisas Ltd. 10.00 - 6,50,€00 293.15 3,50,000 20315
Quadrant Televentures Lid. 1.00 12,00,000 228 12,00,6C0 2.28
Right Innuva Know-How Lid. .| 10.00 2,50 000 125-00. 2,50,050 125.00
(Formerly: The Right Address Ltd )
Total - (a) 420.43 670.43
b} Unguoted:
Keventer Agro Ltd 10.00 79.05,200 TIIEC 19,058,200 723.60
Kevenier Projects Ltd. 10,00 1 50,02C - 1,50,020 -
Twenty Firsl Century Securities Ltd. | 10.00 500,00 - 5,00,C00 .
Total - (k) 723.60 723.60
Preference lnstrumehts_:
a) Unquoted:
Kevenier Capital Ltd * HA3,90,033 - 88,890,933 -
(0%  MNon-Convertible  Preferance
Shares issued by Keventer capital
Ltd in pursuance of demerger cof
Keventer Agro Lid in the ratie of] {
14:3)
" Total - (a) R
Total (B) 1.144.0% 1,394.03
Total -(A+B) 2.480.15 2,721.87
As at As at
31st March, 31st March,
2020 2019
7. Cash & Cash Equivalents
Balance with Banks 34,83 2875
Cash an Hand 0.22 0.20
35.05 28.95
8. Lpoans i
Considered good, unsecured
Loans given 227696 2 500,90
2,276.96 2.500.90
B ——— ————me——
9. Other Financial Assets
Advances fo Related Partlas - 530289
- 5!302.99
10. Other Current Assets
GST Input c47 11.42
Prepaid Expenses 001 .
0.43 1142
11. Current Tax Assets (Net)
Income fax payments (Net) 30,43 98.¢2
30.43 98.92
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12. Equity Share Capital

Particulars As at 31st March, 2021 As al 31st March, 2020
Nos. Amount Mos. Amount
Authorised :
Equity shares of * 10/- each 27,50,000 275.00 27,50,000 275.00

lssued, Subscribed & Paid-up:
Equity shares of ™ 10/- each 14,99,000 149.90 14,889,000 149,90
fully paid-up in cash.

Equity shares of * 10/- sach 10,05,929 100.59 10,05,92¢ 100.5¢
issued for consideration otner than In cash
Total | 25,04,929 250.49 25,04,929 250.49

The reconciliation of the number of shares cutstanding:

Particulars As at As at
31st March, 2021 31st March, 2020
Nos. Nos.
At the beginning of the year 25,04,829 25,04829
Changes during the year W &
Althe end of the year 25,04,929 25,04.929

The details of Shareholders halding more than 5% shares:

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020

Name-of the Sharaholdar No. of Shares % held No, of Shares % held
Madanlal Ltd. 441,830 17.83% 441,630 17.63%
MKJ Enterprises Lid. 4,168,670 16.63% 4,18 670 18.63%
Right Innuva Know-How Lid.[l 3,03 462 12.11% 3,038,462 12.11%
(Formerly: Tha Right Addrass Ltd.)

Mahendra Kumar Jalan 2,289,250 9.16% 2,29,350 9.16%
Twenty First Century Sacurities Ltd. 1,52,400 6.08% 1,562,400 5.08%
Cambridge Constructian (Dalhi) Lid. | 1,£0,000 | 5.58% 1,40,000 5.58%

Rights, Preferences and Restrictions attached to the Equity Shares:
The Equily Sharss of the Company, having par value of 5. 10v- per share, rark parkpassu in all respects including voling rights and entitlernent
to dividend,

As at 31st March, 2021 As at 31st March, 2020
13. Other Equity

Reserve and Surplus
Securities Premium:

As per last accounts £25.00 826,00
General Reserves:

As perlast accounts 464.53 484,53
Retained Earnings:

As per last accounis 2,857.62 2,767.35

Add: Profit during the year (92.87) 540.64

Adjustment for Sale of Investments - (450.07)

Closing Retalned Earnings 2,764.11 2,867.92
Equity Instruments through OCL:

As per last accounts (2,757.98) (2,757.96)

Add: OCI during the year = -

Closing OC| Reserve (2,757 .98) (2,757.86)

1,095.68 \ 1,189.50
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14, Deferred Tax Liabilities (Net)

MK.J DEVELE)PERS LIMITED

(CIN: L45209VWB1983PLCO35740)

Deferred tax Changes Deferred tax
Assels | during Assets |
(Liahilities) the year (Liabilities)
as at asat
31.03.2020 31.03.2021
Deferred tax on gain of investments (31.25) (C.C0) (31.25)
(31.25) (C.00) !31.25!

Since it is not probabie that futura taxable profis will be available against which deducticls {emporary differences may be utiiiseﬂ,

hence no deferred tax assets have been recooniseo.

15. Borrowings
Uasecured Loans:

" From Related Party
‘From Cthers

16. Other Financial Liabllliles

Security Deposit Received
Liability for Expenses
Provision for Income Tax

17. Other Current Liabilities
Statutory Liabilities

18. Other Income

Interest received

19. Changes in lefeniories

Inventories at close
Inventories at commencement

20, Employee Benefit Expanses

Payment to Employees
Directar Sitting Feas

21. Development Expense
Electricity Charges

Raies & Taxes
Legal Expenses

Repairs & Maintenance for Building

Security Guard Expenses
Telephone Expenses
Ganeral Expenses

As at
31st March, 2021

2718.72
108278
3,776.50_

As at
31st March, 2021

———— L

567

As at
_31st March, 2021

3.23
321

2020-21

21568
215 66

2020-21

248015
2,72187

241.72
2020-21
120
0.46
1.66_

2020-21

As at

364,07
36407

As at
_31st March, 2020

8,066.00
8,61
101.00

ool

As at
__31st March, 2020

0.14
0.14

201920

217.54
217.54

2019-20

2,721.87
2,794.53

72.66

2019-20

1.20
0.38
1.58

2019-20

1.17
0.37
5.48
0.06
7.08
0.04
0.11
14.31



MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

(CIN: L45209VWB1983PLCO35740)

Notes ta the Consaolidated Financlal Statements:

22. Other Expenses 2020-21 2019-20
Interest Paid 40.77 -
40.77 -
2020-21 2019-20
22, Olher Expenses
Rent Paid 0.12 0.12
Rates and Taxes 0.05 0.08
Professional Charges 2.30 2.88
Loss on Sale of Investmants - 423.34
Printing & Stationary 0.15 0.2¢
FPostage Expanses - 0.08
Advearlisement a.11 0.04
Bank Charges 0.01 0.01
Fliing Fees 0.03 0.52
Conveyance Expenses - 0.02
Membership & Subscription 0.25 0.25
Share Depository Charges 0.33 0.41
Payment to Auditors:
- For Statutory Audit 2.50 0.80
- For Certifications 0.35 0.95 0.33 083
Taxes Paid 12.85 0.18
Interest Paid 0.01 1.36
Miscellaneous Expenses 0.10 0.74
17.26 431.23

23, Miero, Small and Medium Enterprises
There are no Micro, Small & Medium Enterprises, to whom the company owes dues, which are outstanding for more than 43 days
as at 31st March 2021, This information ag required to be disclosed under the Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development
Act, 2006 has been determined to the extent such parties have been identified on the basis of information available with the
Company.

24, Contingent Liabilities :
Contingent Fabilities not provided for dditional income tax derand disputed by the Company and pending in appeals before
tribunal:

Particulars 31st March, 2021 | 31st March, 2020
Assessment Year
1967-88 1.60 1.60
25, Earning per Share (EFS)

Sl. |Particulars 31st March, 31st March,
No. 2021 2020

a) |Profit/ (Loss) afier Taxation : (% in Lakhs) -83.81 54064

b) [No.of Equity Shares (Weighted Average) { Nes.) 25,04,929 25,04,828

¢) |Nominal value per Eguity Share (%) 10,00 10.00

d) |Earning per Equity Share-Basic/Diluled {a / b) (%) (3.75) 21.58

26. Related Party Disclosures:

(a) Names of the related parties with whom significant refations exist and transactions have taken place during the year are given

below:-

(i} Enterprises/Associates where key management personnel is abla to exercise significant influence;
Ideal Peint Servicas Put. Lic. Right Innuva Know-How Ltd. (Formerly: The Right Address Lid.)
Madanlal Ltd. Satyam Constructions
MKJ Enterprises Lid. Twanty First Cenury Securities Lid

(fi) Key Management Personnel : Position
Shri Mahendra Kumar Jalan Director
Shri Harikeshwar Sah Director
Shri Pritha Basu Director

Shri Debjani Chatterjez Director




MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED

(CIN: L45200WB1983PL.C035740)

Notes to the Consoclidated Financial Statements:

(b) Transactions during tha year with related parlics in the ordinary course of business :

Amount in 7 Lakhs

Related pariies as referred in Tetal
Associales / Key
Mature ef transactions Enterprises Management
; Fersonnel |
a (i) above a (ii] above
1) Shart-term Borrowings:
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 - -
Taken during the year 3,163.84 3163.84
Paid during the year 450.12 - 450,12
Balance as at 31s{ March, 2021 271372 - 271372
2) Shori-lerm Loans & Advances:
Balance as at 1st April, 2020 5.302.99 - 5,302.99
(5,859.39) 2 (6,959.39)
Taken during the year 60.00 E 60,00
(7,458 08) s (1,458.08)
Paid during the year 5,362 99 - 5,362.99
(3,14 48) 2 (3,114.48)
Balance as at 31st March, 2021 - - -
: (5,302 88) (5,302.98)
3) RentPaid 012 0.12
(2.12) (0.12)
4) Directors' Sitling Fees - 046 0.48
3 (0.38) (0.38)

Figures in bracket Indicate figures relating to previous year,

27. Segment Reporting:

In Compliance with Incian Acseunting Standaro AS - 108 on Segmant Reporting issuad by the Institute of Chartered Accountants cf

India, the Segment Infarmation is g ven beiow.

Paniculars
1. Revenus (Including laxes oh Revenue)
2. Results

Segment Result

Operating Profit / (Loss)
Interast Income

Interest (Expenses)

Profit / (Loss) before tax
Taxation for the year

Net Profit / (Loss) for the year

3, Other Informatlons:
Particulars

Tolal Asscis

Tozl Liabilities

Amaunt in ¥ Lakhs

Real Estate Securities Unallocated Total
- 215.66 215.66
{250.00) {0.33) (18.81) (266.94)
215.68 215.68
{40.77) (40.77)
156.30 (94.03)
- - 156.20 {94.03!

Rusal Estate Securlties Unalloeated Total
1,337.12 1,473.84 2,352.06 5,162,82
- 3,816.65 3,816.65



MKJ DEVELOFPERS LIMITED

(CIN:.L45209WE1983PLC035740)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements:
28. Falr Value Measurements

A) The following table shows the carrving amourt and fair values of financial assets and financial llabilities Including their levals in
the fair value hierarchy
Carrying & t Falr
e EWTPL _EVTOC] Amoriised Cost Total Loval 1 Lovel 3 Laval 3 Total
1. |[FInanolal Assets and Liabllities as at
Maroh 31, 2021 e 5 Er——
= ent Finanelal Azsets z
Invesiment in Equiy Shares- Quoied = Xkl 51 0. gd'
Invastmant in Equity Sharas- Unguetad 1 ana 25 5655 Ath A0 31055 ThG 21610
Invesiment in Preference Shares- . 13,08 13,09 = 13,09 1.?..29_
Invastmant in FPardtrerabip Cierms . - - 1 00 .00 - 1.00 fils]
s . 2.52 0.53 0562 052
Jther Financial Asasis G2 BAZ2 - 612 6.12
b, [Current Financlal Assets =
o Gaah sguivalanta - - 55 05 EEIGE] a5 05 35 05
2,375 06 2 276,58 207695 | L]
b S N 2,325.18 2,548.26 - 31087 | =338 29 2,649 25 |
rrent Financlal Llabilities "
OITavANGS: 2 775,60 75.560 3,776 50 3,77€.50
Other Financial Liabilily - - 557 IR 1 587
- - 2,78217 EXTTAE - - ERITRYS A776.50
2. |[Flnanclal Assets and Liabillties as at
@, |Non-Current Financlal E8tE
[ [Investmentin Bty Shares- Qucted | - 0.4 - O.41 0,41 - .41
| etment in Eculty Sharcs- Unguated 137 A0 25 EEE ERENT] 055 592 315 A8
| [Investment in Preference Shares- Jngusty - 13,08 13.09 1209 12.09
|__|Inveatment in Patnerstip ions - - 100 .00 1.00 1.00
| [Loans S 4 057 52 0.52 052
|__|Crther Financlal Agsew £ - - 1452 18,62 18 62 19 62
2, | Current Finanelal Assots - 3
Cash and Cash equiva enle - 28.05 2898 25895 25 95
Loans - B 2,500.80 2,500,890 2 g%?%g 00,20
[ [Other Financial Assets R AR 5,302.59 £,362.99 5,30a, 302,
|__|Total 131 A22. 76 7,A59.20 8,183.38 - + a1 0_!__7 7.872.38 183 .38
e, | Current F"I::ucl: Liab|| tles
[ Toormsings - z T84.07 TE4.07 381,07 EET g;
Sther Cinaneial Liability = - 8,162.54 5,152.64 8,162 .51 9,162.91
Total - - 9,645 08 9 546.68 - - 0,645,68 1,645 68

B) Measurement of Fair Value

a)

k)

<)

d)

The following methods and assumptions were used to estimate the fair values;

The carrying amount of deposits, other receivables, cash and cash equivalent including current bank balances and other
liabilities are censidered to bz the same as their fair values, due to current and short term nature of such balances.

Financial instruments wilh fixee and variaole inlersst rates are evaluated by the company based on parameters such as
interest rates and indiv.dual cred't wortniness of the counterparty. Basad on this evaluation allowances if raquired, are taken to
account for expected [csses of thase rece vahles

The fair value of investment in equity shaes other than subsidiaries were calculated based an cash flow discounted using the

current lending rata. Thay are classified as Level -3 fair values in the far value hierarchy due to inclusion of unobservable
inputs.

In unquoled equity instrumen:s whare mest recent information is not available, or where a wide range of possible fair value
measurements are present, cost has been corsidered o be the far value,

C) Fair Value Hlerarchy

The fair value of finencial instruments as referred to above have peen classifiec into three catageries dapending an tha inputs
used in the valuation technicue. The h erarchy g ves the highest priority to quatad pricas in active markets for identical assets
or liabilities (Level-1 measurements) ard lowest priority to urobservable inputs ( Level-3 measurameants).

Level 1 : Level 1 nierarchy ncludes financial instrumants using quoted prices. These include listed equity instrumants and
mutual funds that have quoted price. The fair value of all equity instruments which are traded in stock exchanges are valued
using the closing pricas as at the repeding pariod.

Level 2. Inpuls other than the quated prices included within level 1 that are absarvable for the assat or liabilitly, sither directly
or indirectly; and

Level 3 : If one or more cf the significant inputs is not kased on cbservabla market data, the Instrumant Is included in Level 3.
This is tha case for unlisted ecuity securit es included in Level 3.



MKJ DEVELQPERS LIMITED

(CIN: L45208WB1953PLC035740)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements:

29, Capital Management
The primary objective of the Company's capital management is o ensure that it maintaing an efficient capital structure and
maximize shareholder value. The company managas its capital shucture and makes adjustments in the light of changes in
economic conditions, annual eoerating plans and long lerm and other strategic investment plans. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, tha company may adust the amount of divicencs paid to sharekalders or issue new shares, No changes
viere made in the ebjectives, policies or processes for managing capital during the year ended March 31, 2021 and March 3;
2020, 8

The Company monitors capital using a ralio of ‘adjusied riet dedt' fo equity’. For this purpose, adjusted net debt is definad as
tetal liabilities, comprising interest-bearing- lzans and berrowings less cash and benk balances. Equity comprises of equily
including share premium and all other equity reserves altibutable {o the equity share halders.

The company’s adjusied et debl to equity ratio = as fallows
Amount in ¥ Lakhs

Farticulars 31st March, 2021 | 31st March, 2020 |
Borrowings - Current and Non Gurrent 3,776.50 384.07

Less: Cash and Cash Equivalents 35.05 28B.95
Adjusted net debt ) 3,741.45 355,12

Total Equity ' 1,346.17 1,439.99
Gapital Gearing Ratio 2.78 0.25

30. Financial Risk Management )

The process of identification and eva latior of various risks nherent in the businass environmient and the cperations of the
compary and initiation of approoriate measures for prevention andior v tigaticn of the same are dealt with by the concerned
cperatonal heads under the overall supervision of the Chief Operating decision maker of e company. The Audit Comimitiee
perindicaliy reviews the adeguacy and efficacy of the .overall risk managemcn: system. The Company's financial risk
managament is an integral part cf how © plan and executive ts business stratzgies. The Company has in place adequale
intemal Financial Controls viiti referenca to financial statements end such internal financial con'ols are operaing =ffectively.
Your cempany has adopted policies ang pracedures for ensurng the orderly and efficient conguct of its business , including
adherence to the Company's policies, the safeguarding 5f i's assets, prevention and detection of frauds and errors, accuracy
and completeness of accounting records and timely oreparation of reliable financial statersents. '

The Company has exposura to the following risks asis g from financial instruments:
a) Credit Risk
by Liguidity Risk
¢) Market Risk

A. Creditrisk ¢
Credit risk is the rigk of financial loss ‘o the comparny if @ customer or counterparty to a financial instrument fails to mest its
contractual obligatiens, and arises princioally from the Company's trade and attar receivables. The carying amounts of
financial assets 1eprasent the maximum credit risk exposure,

i) Trade and olher raceivables ) .
As the company does not have any frade receivables for the balance sheet perioc, thus expected profit flogs has not been
recognised. by

Il) The Company held cash and casn equivalents and other ban balances of % 35.05 Lakhs as el March 31, 2021. (T 28.95
Lakhs as al March 31, 202C). The sama ara helc with barks with good cradi rating.

B. Liguidity risk
Liquidity risk is the risk that the Company will encounter difficully in meeting the obligations asseciated with its financial
liabilities thal are setlled by delivering cash or another financial asset. The Company's approach 1o manage liquidity is to
ensure, as far as possible, that it will have sufficient iquidity Lo meet its llabilities as and when they are due, both under normal
and stressful concitions.

The following are the remaining contractual maturilies of financial liabilities as at the repcring date. The.amounts ara gross
and undiscounted. )

Tin Lakhs
1 year cr less 1-2 years More than Total
2 years
a) Contractual maturitles of financial
liabilities as on 31st March, 2021
Short term borrowings ) 3,775.50 - - ; 3,776.50

b} Contractual malurities of financlal
liabilities as an 31st March, 2020
Short term borrowings 384.07 - - 3s4.07




MKJ DEVELOPERS LIMITED
[CIN: L45209WB1883PLC035740)

Notes to the Consolidated Financial Statements:
C. Market risk
Market risk is the risk that the fair value ¢f futura cesh flows of a finansial assets will fluctuate because of changes in market
prices. The objactive of market risk management is lo manage and control risk exposure within acceplable parameters,

D. Interest Rale Risk and Sensitivity
The Company's exposure to the risk of changas in market interest rales relates primarily 1o the long term debt obligations with
Floating or Fixad rate of nlerest,

31st iarch, 2021 31st March, 2020

Varigble rate of Borrowing = %
Fixed rate of Bomrowing 3,776.50 384.07

31, Previous years' figures have been re-grouped / re-arranged wherever neceseary.
32, Figures have baen rounded off to Incian Rupees (INR) in Lakhs to 2 places of decimals.
As per our report of even date attached.
For Agrawal Tondon & Co. For and on behalf of the Board of Directors

Chartered Accountants
Firm Registration Mo. 329088E

Sdf-
Sd/- ) Mahendra Kumar Jalan (DIN: 00588710)
(Sanjay Agrawal) Director
Partner
Membership No, 056902
Place: Kolkata Sdi-

Harikeshwar Sah (DIN : 00214758)
Daled: 31st August, 2021 Direclor
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TO WHOMSGCEVER IT MAY CONCERN

Sub: Declaration of Audit Report with Un-modified Opinion for the Audited Financial Results for
the year ended 31 March, 2021

Pursuant to Regulation 33 (3) (d) of the SEBI (Listing Obligation and Disclosure Requirements)
Regulation, 2015, Circular No.CIR/CFD/CMD/56/2016 it is herebyu declared and confirmed that the

Auditor’s Report on the Audited Financial Results of the Company for the Financial Year ended 31
March, 2021 is with Un-Modified Opinion.

This is for your Kind information and record.

For and on behalf of MKJ Developers Ltd

Me

Director



